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. - CORPORATE PROFILE \;

TravelSky Technology Limited (the “Company’ or including i;ts subsidiaries, the “Group") is the dominant
orovider of information technology solutions for China's aviation and travel industry. The Group has been
devoted to developing leading products and services that sa:tisfy the needs of all the industry participants
- ranging from commercial' airlines, airports and air travel products and services suppliers to travel
agencies, corporate clients, travelers and cargo shippers - tcj conduct electronic transactions and manage
the demand for travel-related information. The core busmessés of the Company include aviation information
technology service, distribution of information technology %service, etc..
The Company was incorporated in the Pecople’s Republic <13f China (the “PRC"” or “China") on October
18, 2000 and has a controlling equity interest in TravelSky Technology {Hong Kong) Limited, Hainan Civil
Aviation Cares Co., Ltd., Cares Shenzhen Co., Ltd., Cares i—ilubei Co., Ltd., Cares Chongging Information
Technology Co., Lid., Aviation Cares of Yunnan Information Co., Ltd., Civil Aviation Cares of Xiamen Lid,,
Civil Aviation Cares of Qingdao Ltd., Civil Aviation Cares ofXi'an Ltd., Civil Aviation -Cares Technology of
Xinjiang Ltd. and InfoSky Technology Co., Ltd.. The Company also holds a significant equity interest in
each of the following associated companies: Shanghai Civil lAvfation East China Cares System Integration
Co., Ltd., Shenyang Civil Aviation Cares of Northeast China,i Ltd., Aviation Cares of Southwest Chengdu,
Ltd., Heilongjiang TravelSky Airport Technology Limited, Yunnan TravelSky Airport Technology Limited,
Shanghai Dongmei Aviation Tourism Online Co., Ltd and D;alian Travelsky Airport Technology Limited.
The Group had 2,089 employees as at December 31, 2005.

\
The H shares of the Company were listed on The Stock éxchange of Hong Kong Limited (the " Stock
Exchange”) on February 7 2001. The current largest shareholder of the Company is China TravelSky Holding
Company ("CTHC"), which holds an equity interest of app‘roximately 22.3% in the Company. A total of
approximately 42.7% of the equity interest in the Compan:y is held by 14 Chinese commercial airlines,
including the holding companies of the three largest Chinesé commercial airlines, namely, China Southern
Air Holding Company, China Eastern Air Holding Company and China Nationa! Aviation Holding Company.
The remaining 35.0% of the equity interest in the Company is held by holders of its H shares.

The Company established a Sponsored Level | American Depositary Receipt Programme. American

depositary shares under the programme commenced trading on the U.S. overthe-counter market on
December 27, 2002.

TravelSky Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2005



e
e

s/ FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

T~

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company  rwswo

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005

407,901

453,227

242,541

449,181

529,647

Earnings Per Share, Basic and Diluted RMB

2001
2002
2003

2004
2005

Total Assets

0.48

0.51

0.27

0.51

0.60

RME’000

2001

2002
2003

2004
2005

2,894,189

3,087,269

3,376,223

3,750,889

4,107,601




Total Revenues ‘ RMB’000

~ 2001

2002
2003

893,618

2004 " 1,282,850

2005 1,496,784

1] Data Network and Others
[J7] Aviation information technology service

N
N
RN

Profit Before Taxation | RMB'000

ey

, 2001 411,573

/ 2002 o ) 459,860

= 2003 272,345

2004 | | ) - | 499,598

2005 594,757

EBITDA | RME000

2001 | | 479275

2002 | | - | 554,600

2003 | V o 386,900

2004 | | o 628,800

N 2005 \ 723,800
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s/ CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Mr. Znu Yong

Chairman

!

Dear Shareholders

As anticipated, China maintained a rapid growth in its aviation industry during 2005 and is on its way"
heading for the second largest aviation market after USA. As a key market participant, the Group captured
opportunities, by facing challenges proactively and refining the existing systems to achieve good results
in operation safety, business development and financial performance, which brought satisfactory returns
to Shargholders.

It is widely forecast that the strong growths in China’s aviation transportation market in the coming decade
will be further fueled by its fast-growing domestic economy, prosperous travel industry, increasing
international communications, gradual deregulation and competition-encouraging industrial policies. On
the one hand, the Campany's infrastructure is called for larger capacity, higher safety standard, lower cost
and more innovative functions by the ever-expanding market scale, the staging of Beijing 2008 Olympic
Games, and the imminent industry information safety issues arising from the emergence of non-traditional
terrorist threats and the extensive application of ocpen platform technology. On the other hand, due to
fierce market competition caused by travelers’ personalised demands, the entry of new competitors and
emerging operation modes, commercial airlines, travel product and service suppliers, travel agencies and
distribution agents were forced to transform their business modes, streamline workflows, form alliance
and enter into cooperation by relying heavily on information technology service, which have an effect of
making information technology becoming indispensable for the industry to operate. These lead the Group

4 towards an in-depth development in its existing businesses, technologies/products and services, while
putting forward a challenge on the Group’s business vision, operation mechanism, core resources
including talents and technology as well as corporate culture.

TravelSky Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2005



In view of such opportunities and challenges, the Group vvi:H further enhance its safety guarantee ability,
service capability and market competitiveness under its s“cientific development concept. We will also
further change the mode of growth, strengthen susta]nabilitiy in development and realise the fundamental
transformation from a platform operator to an integrated pfroduct and service provider. Also, the Group
will live up to the needs of clients, staff and sharehoiders By introducing further innovations to systems

and mechanisms, perfecting the internal control system apd enhancing the Group’s competitiveness.

Looking forward in line with the established developmentl strategy, the Group will ensure information
safety through more investment in infrastructures, technolody innovation and safety management. Aiming
to strengthen self-inventiveness for rapid development, the Group will introduce, digest and absorb
advanced, mature and mainstream technologies from ab‘road while stressing on the formulation of
information standard as well as establishment of professional teams. Efforts will be also put in maintaining
the Group’s market leadership in core businesses by strentheming the Group’s distribution channels and
enhancing the capability of service to strategic clients. iln order to satisfy the needs of industrial
development, the Group will form strategic alliances with leading international companies to boost its
market penetration and coverage, and combining their efforts to develop new generation traveler service
system and product lines. Meanwhile, the Group will put eﬁo‘rts to foster new sources of business growth,
which will be founded on new business modes, enhanced‘ operation expertise and leaps in its offline/
online distribution of travel products including air tickets and hotels s well as integrated information
technology business. To enhance operating efficiency, the }Group will deepen its reforms in personnel
management, labor and income allocation systems, establis‘h mechanism to keep up talents’ value with
the sustainable business development, as well as build up an|accountability system incorporating budgets,
implementation, monitoring, appraisal and incentives to sitrengthen risk management and corporate

governance. The Group is committed to develop a new Corpo‘rate culture featuring innovation and synergy,
which could enhance the Group’s adaptability in the marke;t.

\
Finally, | would take this opportunity to express my gratitude to all of our staff for their loyalty and

aggression to strive for betterment which has successfully‘ brought to the Group’s rapid growth with
|

innovations. Also, | would like to thank all our shareholders, investors, customers, directors and supervisors

for their trust and support all along.

\

\‘ Zhu Yong
\ Chairman
|
|
|

April 7, 2006
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5/ BuUSINESS REVIEW

CEO

T | Ml’. Zhu Xiaéxing |

The Company is the leading provider
of information technology solutions for
the China’s aviation and travel industry.
While the Company provides advanced
aviation information technology and related services to the Chinese
commercial airlines, it also distributes commercial airlines products and
services to travel service distributors, ticketing offices and individual
consumers and is taking a leading role. With over more than two decades

of continuous development, the Company has preliminarily built up product lines

of comprehensive and functional information technology services, to satisfy the needs of all the industry
participants ranging from commercial airlines, airports, travel products and service suppliers to travel
agents, travel service distributors, corporate clients, travelers and cargo shippers. Through the product
lines, the Company helped these industry participants to troaden their core business, improve their

service quality and enhance their operational efficiency.

AVIATION INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICE

The Company’s aviation information technology ("AIT") services, which consist of series of products and
solutions, are provided to Chinese commercial airlines and more than 280 foreign and regional commercial
airlines. The AIT services comprise electronic travel distribution ("ETD") service {including Inventory
Control System ("ICS") service, Computer Reservation System ("CRS") service) and Airport Passenger
Processing ("APP") service, as well as other extended information technology services related to the
above core businesses, including but not limited to, data service to support decisions of commercial
airlines, product service to support aviation alliance, solutions for developing commercial airlines’ e-ticket
and e-commerce as well as information management system to improve ground operational efficiency
of commercial airlines and airports. Comparing with Year 2004, revenue generated from the AIT services
6 in Year 2005 increased by approximamtely 20.7% to approximamtely RMB1,238.0 million, representing
approximamtely 82.7% of the Group's total revenue.
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Thanks to the rapid growth of the PRC economy and the deepening economic globalization, the civil
aviation industry of the PRC experienced a blooming year in 2005, paving the way for China to head for
the second largest global aviation and transportation market after USA. As the dominant supplier of
information technology services in the PRC aviation and|travel industry, the Company's ETD system
processed approximately 151.4 million bookings on domesticjand overseas commercial airlines, representing

an increase of approximately 14.5% over Year 2004, and has continued to maintain a rapid growth

momentum. Among which, bookings on Chinese commerc‘ial airlines increased by approximately 14.2%,
while that on foreign and regional commercial airlines increased by approximately 22.7%. Passenger

departures processed by APP system accounted for approx:imately 88% of total traveler departures from
domestic airports. With 26 foreign and regional commercial airlines like SilkAir of Singapore and Cathay

Pacific joining the Company's APP system, foreign traveler;departures from domestic airports processed
by the system reached approximately 1.6 million. |

Rooted for years in China's aviation and travel industry, the Group has been meeting clients’ needs,
keeping abreast of up-to-date industry technology. By focus‘ing on the product lines of seat management,
distribution information technology solution packages and fare solutions, which aims at serving commercial
airtines’ profit-oriented requirement, the Group has bee;n perfecting and enhancing AIT and related
services, and has made great contribution to domestic and foreign commercial airlines for their diversified
marketing channels, streamlined business workflows, improved service modes and decreased operating
costs. In 2005, the Company took initiatives to keep on‘ perfecting its product lines based on new
technologies while promoting application of AIT services in the industry. With reference to industry
standards, the Company has developed 3 major technologies of BSP (Billing and Settlement Plan)
electronic ticketing, Airline Direct-sale electronic ticketing [and Airline Online electronic ticketing, which

were fully adopted by 9 Chinese commercial airlines mcl‘udmg Air China and Hainan Airlines. The IET
(Interline Electronic Ticketing) technology was used to facilitate sales of electronic tickets among Chinese

commercial airlines and to establish through check-in services for connecting flights between foreign and

where over RMB100 million of distribution costs was saved. The Group’s self-developed virtual flight

technology was applied in more than 170 flight routes of commercial airlines like China Eastern Airlines

Corporation Limited and China Southern Airlines CompaTy Limited, supporting them to increase the
marketability of city-pairs and expand the distribution network. While Chinese commercial airlines are

preparing to join the international aviation alliances, the Company also continued to perfect and promote

check-in products for connecting flights, which led toiincrease of approximately 30% and 50% in domestic

and international routing transfer travelers respectively, proyiding a strong support to the implementation

regional commercial airlines. Electronic tickets sold amounted to approximately 9.8 million segments,

of hub strategies of Chinese commercial airlines and airpdrts. Efforts were continued in perfecting and

promoting domestic fare products, which facilitated the electronization in collecting, distributing, managing
and calculating the fares for Chinese commercial airlines V‘\/Ith favourable market effectiveness. Through

years of in-depth cultivation, data products and services series have become necessity tools in commercial
airlines’ revenue management and operational decision-making.

S

ravelSky Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2005



?/ BusiNEss REVIEW

Further to its extensive application throughout domestic medium and small airports during the past two
years, the Company's self-developed new generation APP front system was further applied in major
airports in Chengdu, Dalian, Kunming and Wuhan. As a result, 38 airports are using the Company’s new
generation APP front system. The T3 terminal of the Beijing Capital Airport, which is being constructed
to support the Beijing 2008 Olympic Games, also decided to adopt the Company’'s new generation APP
front system, securing the Company's position in development and operation of airport front system.
Furthermore, to support Chinese commercial airlines’ overseas promotion of interchange, through check-
in and e-ticket services, the Company made efforts in promoting its APP system and its operations in
overseas airports. At the end of 2005, overseas airports using the Company's APP system increased to
8, and passenger departures processed amounted to approximately 4 million.

The Company's new generation traveler service system, a traveler-criented platform targeting to support
airlines to compete and operate in the market, can flexibly support each commercial service of the travel
value chain so as to keep in line with the changing aviation and travel industry. In light of the strategy
for new generation system structure with reference to overseas GDS technical architecture and experience,
the Company defined its development plans and implementation approaches for intermediary system in
2005, and used the same as the foundation for determining the infrastructure models for all open
application systems.

DISTRIBUTION INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICE

The Group's travel distribution network comprises more than 50,000 sales terminals owned by more than
6,000 travel agencies or travel service distributors, with high-level networking and direct links to all GDS
around the world and 25 foreign and regional commercial airlines through SITA networks. Covering
approximately 400 domestic and overseas cities, the network processed over 96 million transactions
during the year with transaction amount to over RMB127 billion. The Group provides distribution information
technology services mainly by offering solution plans at the front end, intermediary and back-office levels,
aiming to delivering more diversified and accurate content and information to trave! distribution networks,
so to support flexible distribution modes and tailored solutions.

TravelSky Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2005




Cn front end solution plans, the Group's main effort is to perfect the already launched E-Term products
and Windows-based Web products, so as to provide travel|distribution network with powerful front end
systems which enable air ticket sales, hotel reservation and car rental service to cater for customer needs.
At intermediary level solution plans, the Group provides data analysis products, marketing management

tools, information release and business workflow platforms,|greatly aiding travel agencies or travel service
distributors in market analysis, customer management and operations. As to back-office solution plans,
the Group provides customised solution packages for distribution technclogy covering comprehensive
business workflows of major travel agencies, tailored to their needs for paving their ways to domestic
and international markets. For instance, the Company entered into a 3-year strategic cooperation agreement
in 2005 with American Express, one of the largest global k;)usiness travel management companies. The
cooperation provided an access for American Express’ custdmers worldwide to experience travel services
in China under international standards. Meanwhile, it enhanced the Group's in-depth understanding into
businesses and workflows of global leading business trave‘l management company, laying a foundation
for developing better information technology solutions to meet business needs of travel agencies and
travel service distributions, and to satisfy market demands.

|
Another focus of the Company is the dedicated developme‘nt of e-business solutions in support of travel
distribution network. The Company's self-developed booking engine technology has been supporting e-
business applications of travel agencies broadly, advancing online distribution business in China's aviation
and travel industry. In 2005, approximately 3 million segments were sold through e-business with
transaction amounting to approximately RMB1.6 billion. l

|
The Company provides services to the distribution network through more than 30 local distribution centers
throughout the nation, which are the contacting points of the Company’s distribution system. In 2005,
the Company established new regional distribution ¢enters in Japan, Korea and Singapore to strengthen

its services in overseas markets. i

|
TRAVEL PRODUCT DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

One of the Group’s established strategies is to dedicate itself in development of travel product distribution
services including hotel reservation, “hotel + air ticket” packages, car rental and business trip insurance
products. In 2005, the Company kept perfecting the hote\‘distribution system on open platform and by
control measure, leading to a breakthrough in hotel resfervation business. Throughout the vear, the
Company successfully distributed 51,000 hotels’ room—mgh'}s, covering over 2,000 hotels in the Mainland,
Hong Kong and Macau.

ravelSky Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2005
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY INTEGRATION SERVICE

Progress was also made in the Group's information technology integration services in 2005. The Group's
self-developed information technology integrated products were extensively used in airports throughout
China, including security information system, airport automatic broadcasting system and baggage
confirmation system. The Uni-Service for Airport Passenger, targeting high-end customers, has been used
in airports of Guangzhou and Shenzhen with preliminary market recognition. With a contract successfully
entered with the Beijing Capital Airport on APSIS (Aviation Passenger Security Information System)
addressing travel safety of air passengers, the Company moved forward an important step towards
information safety of aviation in China.

INFRASTRUCTURE

The Group's infrastructure serves its overall development strategy. Its objectives are to ensure safety,
satisfy the needs of business development, align system structure and opﬂmize resource allocation by
making full use of available technologies, business and management, so as to improve operating reliability
and interference resisting ability with lower operating expenses.

In 2005, the Company purchased a new mainframe of Dorado 280 which was smoothly installed and put
into operation by the year end, with a view to satisfy China‘s aviation demand for system processing
capabilities in relation to the everincreasing volume of travelers. This resulted in a 40% expansion of
mainframe capacity. At the same time, through technology innovations such as mainframe AV move-out,
about 3.4% of system resources were saved. Meanwhile, infrastructure reliability was effectively enhanced
through a series of technology improvements like same-city-different-location disaster backup system
based on SRDF (Symmetrix Data Replication Facility) technologies, mainframe performance optimisation,
data warehouse expansion and cross-backup over multiple lines of telecommunication operators. Further,
operating cost of over RMB10 million was saved through the message transfer from the SITA network
to the Company’s network. In Year 2005, the availability ratios of Company's ICS, CRS and APP mainframe
systems were approximately 99.9%, 99.9% and 99.9% respectively, with desirable operating performance
in the core network and networking.

TravelSky Technology Limited  Annual Report 2005




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAL\(SIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the financial information of the
Group contained in the financial statements (together with the notes thereto) reproduced in this annual
report. The financial statements have been prepared in acclardance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS"). The following discussion on the synopsis of historical results do not represent a

prediction as to the future business operations of the Group.

OVERVIEW

For the year ended December 31, 2005 (“Year 2005"), profit Pefore taxation of the Group was approximately
RMB594.8 million, representing an increase of approximately 19.0% over that in the year ended December
31, 2004 ("Year 2004"). Earnings before interests, tax, de‘preciatlon and amortization (EBITDA) reached
approximately RMB723.8 million, representing an increase gf approximately 15.1% over that in Year 2004.
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was approximately RMB529.6 million, an increase
of approximately 17.9% over the previous year. The increase in the profitability of the Group was mainly
due to the increase in revenue from the Company's AlT service, and saving of part of the operation cost
as a result of adoption of integrated measures of marketing, technology and management.

The basic and diluted earnings per share of the Group in|Year 2005 was RMBO0.60.
TOTAL REVENUE

The total revenue of the Group amounted to approximately RMB1,496.8 million, representing an increase

of approximately RMB213.8 million, or 16.7%, from approxi‘mately RMB1,282.9 million in Year 2004. Such

increase was mainly due to rapid growth in bookings of domestic and international commercial airlines

handled by the Group's system. The increase in total revenue is reflected as follows:

. AT service revenue represented 82.7% of the total r‘evenue of the Group in Year 2005 as compared
to 80% in Year 2004. AlT service revenue increased by approximately 20.7% to approximately
RMB1,238.0 million in Year 2005 from approximately|RMB1,025.7 million in Year 2004. The increase

of revenue resulted primarily from the increase in |ETD business.

. Data network and other revenue represented 17.30? of the Group’s total revenue in Year 2005 as

compared to 20%. In Year 2004, data network and other revenue increased by approximately 0.6%
to approximately RMB258.8 million in Year 2005 fromn approximately RMB257.1 million in Year 2004.

|
|
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j,-./ FinanciaL Review

NET REVENUE

Net revenue increased by 16.6% to approximately RMB1,447.0 million in Year 2005 from approximately
RMB1,240.6 million in Year 2004.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses for Year 2005 amounted to RMB303.2 million, representing an increase of RMB115.7
million, or 14.7%, from RMB7874 million in Year 2004, The increase in operating expenses reflected the

following:

. Depreciation and amortization increased by 9.2% from RMB166.7 million in 2004 to RMB182.0
million in 2005, mainly due to provision for depreciation and amortization of capital expenditure
commenced in 2005;

. Along with the maintaining of rapid growth in business volume came a 15.1% reduction in network
usage charge, which decreased from RMB70.7 million in 2004 to RMB60.0 million in 2005, mainiy
because the Group has adopted measures such as marketing, technology and management and
transferred the SITA network to the Company’s network for work through telex transfer as well
as reduced usage on the SITA system;

. Personnel expenses increased by 17.9%, primarily attributable to the increased number of staff
1o support the business development of the Group;

. Operating leases expenses increased by 25.2%, mainly due to the expanded office area as a result
of business development and increase in number of staff of the Company;

. Technical support and maintenance fee increased by 68.4% due to the continuous expansion of
new products and research and development of new technologies of the Company in Year 2005.

. Other operating expense of the Group increased by of 32.1% mainly because the Company and
district distribution centres made greater effort in market development and enhanced localized
support for customers; while there has been an increase in revenue, the corresponding expense
has also been increased.

As a result of the above changes in net revenue and operating expenses, the operating profit of the Group

increased by RMB90.8 million, or 20.0%, to RMB543.9 million in Year 2005 from RMB453.1 million in
Year 2004.

TravelSky Technology Limited  Annual Report 2005




|
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

As a result of the above factors, the profit attributable to
approximately 17.9% to approximately RMB529.6 million
millicn in Year 2004.

equity holders of the Company increased by
in Year 2005 from approximately RMB449.2

RESERVES AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION

After the appropriation of the statutory reserve fund, the stat
surplus reserve fund from the profit attributable to shareh
statements prepared under IFRS, the reserves available f‘

utory public welfare fund and the discretionary
olders as reflected in the statutory financial
or distribution as at December 31, 2005, as

stated in Note 32 to the financial statements, amounted to RMB627.9 million.

DISTRIBUTION OF DIVIDEND

The Board recommended a final dividend of RMB0.230 per

share for Year 2005, amounting to RMB204.3

million. After the distribution of the above dividend declared, the reserve available for distribution as at
December 31, 2005 would be approximately RMB423.6 million (2004: RMB299.9 million).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The following table summarizes the cash flows of the Group for the years presented:

For the Year ended December 31
2005 2004
(RMB in million) (RMB in million)

Net cash inflows from operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in financing activities
Impact of change of exchange rates

on cash and cash eqguivalent
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

402.5 575.5
(1,656.7) (244.7)
(111.3) (128.9)
(14.6) —
(1,380.0) 201.9

The Group's working capital for Year 2005 mainly came f
operating activities amounted to RMB402.5 million.

In Year 2005, the Group had no short-term or long-term bank
instruments for hedging purposes.

om operating activities. Net cash inflow for

loans, and the Group did not use any financial

As at December 31, 2005, cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to RMB856.8 million, of
which 88.7%, 9.1% and 2.1% were denominated in Renminbi, U.S. dollars and Hong Kong dollars,

respectively.

1;Trave|5ky Technology Limited  Annual Report 2005
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LONG-TERM INVESTMENT

As at December 31, 2005, the Group held RMB100 million treasury bonds of China with an interest rate
of 3% per annum. The maturity date of the treasury bonds is on December 18, 2008.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at December 31, 2005, the Group had no charge on its assets.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure of the Group amounted to approximately RMB435.0 million in Year 2005, representing
an increase of approximately RMB329.8 million as compared to that of approximately RMB105.2 million
in Year 2004.

The capital expenditure of the Group in Year 2005 consisted principally of purchase of hardware, software
and infrastructure in accordance with the Group's business strategies.

The Board estimates that the Group'’s planned capital expenditure for year 2006 will amount to approximately
RMB370.0 million, which is mainly for development and gradual implementation of the new-generation

traveler service system and other new businesses.

The sources of funding for the capital expenditure commitments will include net proceeds from the initial
public offering of Company and internal cash flow generated from operations.

The Board estimates that the sources of funding of the Group in year 2006 will be sufficient for its capital
expenditure commitments, daily operations and other purposes.

EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risks related to its capital expenditure as a substantial portion
of its capital expenditure in relation to the purchase of imported equipment are denominated in U.S.
dollars. Fluctuation of the exchange rates of Renminbi against foreign currencies could affect the Group's
results of operations.

GEARING RATIO

As at December 31, 2005, the gearing ratio of the Group was approximately 11.2% (2004: 12.4%), which
was computed by dividing the total amount of liabilities by the total assets of the Group as at December
31, 2005.

TravelSky Technology Limited  Annual Report 2005




CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at December 31, 2005, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES

As at December 31, 2005, the total number of employees
amounted to approximately RMB1577 million for Year 2005,
operating cost of the Group for Year 2005.

The remuneration of the employees of the Group (in¢luding

‘:)f the Group was 2,089. Personnel expenses
representing approximately 17.5% of the total

Executive Directors and Staff Representative

Supervisors), includes salaries, bonuses and other fringe benefits. The Group has different rates of

remuneration for different employees (including Executive Di

rectors and Staff Representative Supervisors),

according to their performance, experience, position and other factors in compliance with the relevant

PRC laws and regulations.

Currently, none of the Non-executive Directors receive any

remuneration. Nevertheless, any reasonable

expenses incurred by the Non-executive Directors during their service period will be borne by the

Company. Independent Non-executive Directors do receiv

e remuneration from the Company, which is

determined by reference to the prevailing market price, and that any reasonable expenses incurred by

Independent Non-executive Directors during their service

In Year 2005, the Group continued to provide its employees
to the aviation and travel industry, computer technologies an
on the latest development in areas such as computer technol
and economics.

BASIC MEDICAL INSURANCE REGULATI

On February 20, 2001, the People’s Government of the M
the "Basic Medical Insurance Regulation for the Municipa

period will be borne by the Company.
with opportunities to acquire skills in relation

d business administration and provide training
bgies, personal development, laws, regulations

ON

inicipality of Beijing in the PRC promulgated

ity of Beijing” (the "Regulation”). Given the

fact that relevant regulations concerning employees’ medical insurance must be applied according to the

policies applicable to the place in which a company is Iocat“ed, the head office of the Company in Beijing

implemented the Regulation from September 1, 2002 onwards. For Year 2005, the Company incurred a
total amount of RMB5,504,730 (a total amount of RMBS,¢75,469 was incurred in Year 2004) pursuant

to the Regulation. The Board believes that by implememiné the Regulation, the financial position of the
|

Company has not been materially affected.
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The Board (the "Board"}), Supervisory Committee and Senior Management of the Company are committed
to implementing effective corporate governance policies to ensure that all decisions are made in good
faith and in accordance with the principles of transparency, fairness and integrity. With necessary and
effective counterbalance, the Company continues to improve its corporate governance structure, $o as
to raise the quality of supervision and management, and to meet the expectation of its shareholders and
related parties.

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT PRACTICE

In compliance with Company Law of PRC and the Company Articles of Association (the "Articles”), the
Company has regulatéd its internal operations and provided information of the Company to market
participants and regulatory authorities on timely, accurate, complete and true basis, aiming to enhance
its corporate value. In 2005, the Board passed the resolution to adopt the code provisions as stipulated
in “"Code of Corporate Governance Practices” (the "Code”) as the Company’s code of corporate governance
practices. The Company has fully complied with the code provisions (save as the relevant code provisions
on internal control) with certain deviations.

As mentioned in the Company's Interim Report 2005, the Company had fully complied with the code
provision with deviations from the code provisions A.1.3, B.1.3, B.1.4, C.3.3, C.3.4, D.1.1 and D.1.2 of the
Code. In the later half of 2005, the Company has given notices on the meeting 14 days prior to convening
the board meeting as stipulated in code provision A.1.3. It was decided in the board meeting held in
October 2005 that relevant provisions on the Work rules of Remuneration and Evaluation Committee and
Audit Committee be amended and supplemented respectively in accordance with code provisions B1.3
and C.3.3, and that Work rules of the Committees be available at the Company’s website (www.travelsky.net)
in accordance with “Disclosure of the Committees’ roles, terms of reference and power and authorities
delegated to them by the Board” as stipulated in provisions B.1.4 and C.3.4 of the Code. The Company
has set out the respective duties of the Board and the General Manager in the Articles. However, the
Company has not formulated specific guidelines in respect of other duties of the management and
authority delegated to the management, which deviates from cade provisions D.1.1 and D.1.2 of the Code.
The Board is of the opinion that the Company’s management, who is responsible for management of
its daily operation, is a management team led by the General Manager. The Company’s current arrangement
does not prejudice the interests of the Company. The Board is considering to further set out explicitly
the duties the Board delegated to the management in 2006.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

Each Directors of the Company has fulfilled their duties in a conscientious, diligent and honest manner.
The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies”
("Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, requesting all Directors to carry out
securities transactions in accordance with the Model Code. Upon specific enquiries made to Directors,
16 it is confirmed that no Director has breached the relevant requirements of the Model Code in 2005.

TravelSky Technology Limited ~ Annual Report 2005




THE BOARD

The Board is responsible to lead and monitor the Company, and to collectively coordinate and supervise
the affairs of the Company to achieve the success of the Company. The Directors made decisions in the
interest of the Company in objective manner.

The Board is respensible to prepare accounts for each financial period to ensure them to reflect the
Company’s business position, results and cash flow during the period in accurate and fair manner. In
compiling the accounts for 2005, the Board has selected fthe appropriate accounting policy which was
consistently applied, and has adopted the International Financial Reporting Standard. The Board has also
made prudent and reasonable judgments and estimations,|and prepared accounts on ongoing operation
basis. The Directors accept responsibilities for the preparation of the Group's financial statements. in 2005,
the Board announced annual result for 2004 and interim result for 2005 within 120 days and 60 days
respectively after the end of the relevant financial periods in accordance with the requirements under
the articles of association of the Company.

The second Board of the Company comprises of 15 Directors (refer to the section 1 of “"Corporate
Information” for the list of members of Directors), of which 4 are Executive Directors and 11 are Non-
executive Directors (including 3 Independent Non-executive Directors). The terms of all members of the
second Board {including Non-executive Directors) will expire on December 5, 2006. The biographies of
Directors are set out on pages 95 to 99. Each of the Dir‘ectors has extensive experience in aviation,
information technology or finance. The appointment of Independent Directors is in compliance with the
requirements as set out in Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules. The Company’s Chairman of the
Board (Chairman) and Chief Executive Officer (General Manager) are assumed by Mr. Zhu Yong and Mr.
Zhu Xiaoxing respectively and their duties are clearly separated.

The three existing Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Wu Jiapei, Mr. Chow Kwok Wah, James and
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, have submitted their annual confirmations of independency in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is in the opinion that all Independent Non-executive Directors
are in compliance with the guidelines on independency as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent parties as defined in the guidelines. The three Independent Non-executive Directors
consistently performed their duties in active and prudent manner. Based on the overall interests of the
Company, the independent Non-executive Directors, with their valuable professional experience, have
provided guidance for operation management of the Company. Moreover, being the members of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee, they have performed their duties in

supervising financial reporting procedures and reviewing

At the Extraordinary General Meeing held in August 2005,
and Mr.Lee Kwok Ming, Don, an Independent Non-executi

nternal control.

Mr. Zhang Xueren, an Non-executive Director,
e Director, were approved to resign from their

offices as Directors for personal reasons, and Mr. Gong Guckui and Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon were elected

as Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
effective from the date thereof to December 5, 2006. At
Mr. Gong Guokui was elected as a Vice Chairman and a m

Director respectively, with the terms of office
the board meeting held on August 24, 2005,
ember of the Strategic Committee. The Board

also appointed Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, as a member of‘ the Audit Committee and the Remuneration

and Evaluation Committee.
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In 2005, a total of 4 board meetings were held with attendance of Directors as follows :

i Number of |
Number of meeting to be ;
? meeting attended attended Attendance
f Name Positions {Times} (Times) rate§
Mr. Zhu Yong Chairman 4 4 100%
Mr. Wang Quanhua Vice-Chairman, 4 4 100%
Non-executive Director {with 2 attended by
other authorized
Directors on his behalf}
Mr. Cac Jianxiong Vice Chairman, 4 4 100%
Non-executive Director
Mr. Gong Guokui Vice Chairman, 2 2 100%
Non-executive Director
{appointed as Director
in August 2005)
Mr. Rong Gang Non-executive Director 4 4 100%
Mr. Yang Yatie Non-executive Director 4 4 100%
Mr. Zhu Xiaoxing Executive Director, CEO 4 4 100%
Mr. Ding Weiping Executive Director 4 4 100%
Mr. Song Jinxiang Executive Director 4 4 100%
Mr. Li Xiaoguang Non-executive Director 3 4 75%
Mr. Si Yupei Non-executive Director 4 4 100%
{with 1 attended by
another authorized
Director on her behalf)
Mr. Song Jian Non-executive Director 4 4 100%
Mr. Wu Jiapei independent Non-executive 4 4 100%
Director
Mr. Chow Kwok Wah, James Independent Non-executive 4 4 100%
Director
M. Yick Wing Fat, Simon Independent Non-executive 2 2 100%
Director (appointed as Director
in August 2005)
Mr. Zhang Xueren Resigned as Non-executive 1 2 50%
Director during the year
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, Don Resigned as Independent — 2 0

Non-executive Director
during the year
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The Company, in some circumstances, deviates from code provisions D.1.1 and D.1.2 of the Code.
Currently, the Company has yet to set out clear guidance|on the duties delegated by the Board to the

management. The Board is of the opinion that the Compa

ny’s management, who is responsible for the

management of its daily operation, is a management tean‘w led by the General Manager. The respective
duties and authorities of the Board and the General Manager have been set out explicitly in the articles
of association of the Company. The Board c¢an also delega‘%e the General Manager with authority to deal
with certain extraordinary issues such as signing particular agreements. The Company's current arrangement
on performing the duties under the leadership of the Genérai Manager does not prejudice the interests
of the Company. The Board! is considering to further set OL‘Jt explicitly the duties delegated by the Board
to the management in 2006.

The Board convenes the general meeting in accordance w‘ith the articles of association of the Company
and performs the following duties: convening general meeting and reporting its work therein; implementing
resolutions passed at the general meeting; confirming the Company’s business plans and investment
plans; preparing the Company’s annual budgets and final closing accounts; proposing to shareholders on
the distribution of dividends and bonuses as well as increment and decrement of share capital; establishing
amendment propesals for the articles of association of the Company,; deciding other significant affairs
and administrative issues of the Company other than issues to be resolved in the general meeting as
stipulated in Company Law and the articles of association| of the Company, and exercising other power
by virtue of office, duties and obligations as delegated|by the general meeting and the articles of
assocization of the Company. It is also stipulated in fhe Company’s articles of association that resolutions
approved by the Board in connection with the Company’s connected transactions are not valid unless
it is signed by Independent Non-executive Directors.

According to the Company's Articles of association, the |Board delegates the following duties to the
Company's General Manager: to manage the Company’s production and operation; to implement resolutions
passed by the Board; to implement the Company’s annual business plans and investment plans; to
formulate plans for the Company’s internal management framework; to formulate framework plans for
the subsidiaries of the Company; to establish the Compa py's basic management system; to formulate
the Company’s basic constitution; to propose the appointment or dismissal of the Deputy General
Manager and Financial Controller of the Company; to appoint or dismiss officers other than those to be
appointed or dismissed by the Board; to perform other dfties as delegated by the Company’s articles

of association and the Board.

In addition, the Board authorized the General Manager to a‘pprove investments related to the Company's

principal business made by institutions in which the Comqanv has invested less than RMB5 million {for
instance, the Company’s regional distribution centres). Such authority was given to the Board in the

general meeting in 2002 and was then delegated to the General Manager for the purpose of enhancing
management efficiency of its daily business operation.
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REPORT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wu Jiapei, Mr.
Chow Kwok Wah, James and Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. Wu Jiapei was elected as the chief member
of the Audit Committee (Chairman of the Committee).

The role, duties and authority of the Audit Committee are available at the Company website. They mainly
include: review of the Company's financial report in respect of its completeness, accuracy and integrity;
listen to the report from the Company management and auditors on the Company's financial position;
make enquiries and receive reasonable explanations to and from the financial department and auditors;
review issues in respect of the Company’s internal control and financial reporting and report the same
to the Board. The Audit Committee held at least two regular meetings each year, and will be held any
time as and when necessary.

In 2005, the Audit Committee has convened four meetings, the minutes of which were submitted to the
Board for reporting purpose. Its work during the year is briefly described as follows:

1. review of financial reports for the year ended December 31, 2004 and the six months ended June
30, 2005. Upon discussion with the management, the Company's financial department and external
auditors, it was agreed on the accounting mode adopted by the Group, and that the Group has
tried their best to ensure the disclosure of financial information is in compliance with the appropriate
accounting standards and the reguirements of Listing Rules;

2. review of auditing arrangements of external auditors and their status report, and examination of
issues raised by auditors to the management and the management’s responsel to the same;

3. review of reports from the Company and external auditors in relation to connected transactions;

4, review of the independency of external auditors and effectiveness of auditing procedures and
discussion with auditors about the nature and scope of auditing and reporting obligation;

5. consideration and approval of remuneration for auditing services and terms of employment of
external auditors for 2005, supervision of non-auditing services provided by external auditors and
advised the Board on employment of auditors;

6. review of the Company's regulations on financial control and risk management, supervision of the
coordination between internal and external auditing and their effectiveness, as well as the efficiency
of internal financial reporting procedure and the implementation of internal management; and

7 review of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and amended “Rules of Work of Audit

Committee” in accordance with the provisions as set out in the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices.
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On April 6, 2006, the Audit Committee held a meeting 1o review the Group's consolidated financial
statement for Year 2005 with external auditors, including the accounting principles and practical standards

adopted by the Group. Based on the results of review and discussion with the management, financial
department and external auditors, it was agreed on the acc}ounting mode adopted by the Group, and that
the Group has tried their best to ensure the disclosure of Tinancial information is in compliance with the
appropriate accounting standards and Appendix 16 to the I‘_isting Rules. Therefore, the Audit Committee

advised the Board tc approve the consolidated financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2005.
|
The Audit Committee also advised to appoint P‘ricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong
("PricewaterhouseCoopers”) and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Ltd. Co.
(" PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian"”) as the Group's mter‘nationa\ and PRC external auditors respectively
for Year 2008, and proposed the relevant resolutions to be considered and approved by shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting of 2005. The Audit Com‘mittee also advised the Board to request
PricewaterhouseCoopers and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zh‘ong Tian to have their partners designated for
the Group be retired by rotation once every five years.
|

Attendance rate of Audit Committee meetings for this fin‘ancial year :

; Number of Number of
! meeting attended meeting to be Attendance
‘ Name (Times) attended (Times) rate

Mr. Wu Jiapei |

(Chairman of the Committee) 4‘1 100%
Mr. Chow Kwok Wah, James 4 4 100%
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon 2; 2 100%
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, Don ;
1
\

(Resigned during the year) 2 50%
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REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION COMMITTEE (“REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE”)

The Remuneration Committee comprises of five members, three of which are Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chow Kwok Wah, James, Mr. Wu Jiapei and Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon. The remaining
two are Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Quanhua and Mr. Yang Yatie. Mr. Chow Kwok Wah,
James, an Independent Non-executive Director, was elected as the chief member of the Remuneration
Committee (i.e. Chairman).

The role and duties of the Remuneration Committee are available at the corporate website. They mainly
include: study of appraisal criteria for Directors and senior management and give advice according to the
Company’s actual operation; study and review of remuneration policies and proposals of Directors and
senior management, and evaluating its effectiveness; advising the Board on the overall remuneration
policies and frameworks of Directors and senior management of the Company, and on the remuneration
policy for setting up formal and transparent procedures; monitor the implementation of the Company's
remuneration policies; determine specific remuneration of all Executive Directors and senior management
and advising the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors; review and approval of performance-
linked remuneration in accordance with the corporate goals as from time to time approved by the Board;
review and approval of the payment of compensation for foss or termination of office or appointment to
Executive Directors and senior management to ensure such compensation is determined in accordance
with contract terms; review and approval of the compensation arrangement for dismissal or removal of
Directors for their misconducts to ensure such arrangement is made in accordance with contract terms;
ensure no Director or its associates could determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall report to the Board its decisions or recommendations. The remuneration
plan of the Company's Directors made by the Remuneration Committee is subject to the approval of the
Board, and consideration and approval at the general meeting. The remuneration plan of the Company's
senior management should also be approved by the Board.

In 2005, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings in August and October respectively. The
Committee has reviewed the Company's existing remuneration policies and appraisal system. Researches
were subsequently carried out on companies of the same industry and the market, for which theme
studies will be conducted on the improvement of the rationality and implementation plans of the
Company's remuneration and appraisal systems.
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Attendance of the meetings of the Remuneration Commi‘ttee is as follows:

Number of Number of ‘

J meeting attended meeting to be Attendance;

“ Name (Times) attended (Times) rate:
1

Mr. Chow Kwok Wah, James (Chairman} 2‘ 2 100%

Mr. Wu Jiapei % 2 100%

M. Yick Wing Fat, Simon 2 2 100%

Mr. Wang Quanhua 1; 2 50%

Mr. Yang Yatie 2 2 100%
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, Don ;

{(Resigned during the year) q 0 —

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not yet set up a Nomination Committee. Nomination and election of Directors are

currently carried out in accordance with the Company's Articles. At present, the promoter shareholders
and the Board nominate and recommend candidates of Directors (other than Independent Non-executive
Directors) and Independent Non-executive Directors respec‘tive\y. Following the nomination of candidates
of Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) by the Board in accordance with the relevant
requirement of Company Law, Listing Rules, Chapter 14 “Eligibility and obligations of Directors, Supervisors,
Managers and other senior management of the Company’,[the Company will put forward the nomination
in the general meeting. The Director of the Company serves a term of 3 years and is subject to re-election
upon expiry. Written notices of intention of nominations of Director’s candidate indicating candidate’s
acceptance for nomination shall be sent to the Company |after the date that the notice on the general
meeting for the purpose of Directors’ election is issued and at least 7 days prior to the date of the meeting.
Each of the Board comprises of 15 Directors, of which a!t least one-half of the Directors are external

Directors (including two or more Independent Non-executive Directors). Directors shall be elected by

way of ordinary resolution in the General Meeting. In cas? more than 15 Directors are approved, those

who have got the highest vote shall be elected as Direct?rs. Any Director who has unexpired terms of
office may be removed by way of ordinary resolution at the general meeting provided that the general

meeting is in compliance with the relevant provisions of [aw and administrative rules.

|
|
[
|
/
|
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Members of professional committees under the Board shall be nominated by either the Chairman, one-
half of the independent Non-executive Directors and above or one-third of all the member of Directors,
and subsequently elected by the Board. Chief members of all committees {(Chairman of the committee)
shall be appointed by the Board. Eligibility of all committee members shall comply with related stipulations
of working rules of the committees.

In June 2005, Mr. Zhang Xueren, a Non-executive Director and Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, Don, an Independent
Non-executive Director, tendered their resignations as Directors due to personal reasons and was
approved at the Company's extraordinary general meeting held on August 23, 2005. Mr. Gong Guokui
and Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon were also elected as Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director at the meeting, with terms of office from the date thereof to December 5, 2006. In the board
meeting held on August 24, 2005, Mr. Gong Guokui was elected as a Vice Chairman and a member of
the Strategic Commitiee. The Board also appointed Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon as members of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

REMUNERATION OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Remunerations for auditing services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers and PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian CPAs Ltd. Co., the Company's international and PRC auditors respectively, to the Company
for Year 2005 totaled at RMB 1,540,000. No other non-auditing services were provided.

STRATEGIC COMMITTEE

The Strategic Committee is responsible to study and advise the Company on its long term development
strategies and significant investment decisions, including major issues like significant investment financing
plans, significant capital operations and asset operations, which have an impact on the Company's
development. Their duties are set out at the Company’s website.

The Strategic Committee comprises of six members, including Mr. Cao Jianxiong, Mr. Zhu Yong, Mr. Wang
Quanhua, Mr. Gong Guokui, Mr. Rong Gang and Mr. Ding Weiping. Mr. Cao Jianxiong was appointed as
the chief member of the Strategic Committee (Chairman of the committee). In October 2005, the Strategic
Committee convened a meeting to discuss the Company’s strategic joint venture projects and reported
to the Board. Attendance rate of the Strategic Committee meetings the 2005 was 100%.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE |

The Supervisory Committee was established in accordancé with the PRC law. It reviewed the Company's

financial position in accordance with the Company’s artic\%s of association and supervised the operation
management activities of the Board and senior management. The Supervisory Committee is responsible
to attend board meetings, approve financial information‘discussed from time to time at the general
meeting such as corporate financial affairs and financial statements, supervise activities of the Board and

other senior management for their discharge of duties.| In case of conflict of interest between the

Company and any of its Directors, the Supervisory Commi'gtee shall negotiate or initiate legal proceedings
against such Directors on behalf of the Company. Any\ resolution proposed in any meeting of the

Supervisory Committee shall be adopted with approval gra}mted by two-third or more of the Supervisors.

The second Supervisory Committee was elected at the EGM held on December 5, 2003, with a term
expiring on December 5, 2006. The second Supervisory Committee comprises of eight members (refer
to Section 1 of "Corporate Information” for the list of members of Supervisors), including an Independent
Supervisor, Mr. Rao Geping, and with Ms. Li Xiaojun and Ms. Du Hongying as Chairperson and Deputy
Chairperson of the Supervisory Committee respectively . The biographies of Supervisors are set out on
pages 99 to 101,

During 2005, the Supervisory Committee convened two meetings with attendance of 100%. The Supervisory
Committee has reviewed financial information pertaining|the Company’s 2004 annual result and 2005
interim result, supervised over operation management activities of the Board and senior management
and made recommendations to the management.

All Supervisors of the Supervisory Committee fully complied with the "Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies” as set qut in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

‘ By Order of the Board
; Ding Weiping
Company Secretary
April 7. 2006
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present its report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for Year 2005.

GROUP ACTIVITIES

The Group is the dominant provider of information technology solutions for China’s aviation and travel
industries. The core businesses of the Group include aviation information technology service, distribution
of information technology service, etc..

The analysis of the Group's financial performance is set out under the section “Financial Review'
No analysis of the Group’'s revenues and contribution to operating profit by geographical areas is

presented, as revenues and results of the Group during Year 2005 were principally derived from the
operations of the Group in the PRC.

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The issued share capital of the Company as at December 31, 2005 amounted to 888,157 500 shares, with
a par value of RMB1.00 each. As at December 31, 2005, the share capital structure of the Company was

as follows:
T Percentage to
Number of the total number of
i shares as shares in issue as at
i Shares at December 31, 2005 December 31, 2005 (%)
Domestic Shares 577,303,500 65.00
H Shares 310,854,000 35.00
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
!
As at December 31 2005, pursuant to the register require!d 10 be maintained under Section 336 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws|of Hong Kong) {the "Ordinance"), the following
substantial shareholders held an interest of 5% or more in their respective class of share capital of the
Company:

| Percentage ‘
‘ of respective Percentage ;
1 Class and class of share of total |
\ Name of shareholder no. of Securities {Note) capital share capital 1
l
Shanghai Industrial 40,848,000 H %hares of 13.14% 4.60%
Investment (Holdings) RMB 1| each (L}
Company Limited ‘
\
Templeton Asset 40,567000 H %hares of 13.05% 4.57%
Management Limited RMB 1| each (L)
\
J.PMorgan Chase & Co. 34,195,600 H %hares of 11.00% 3.85%
RMB1| each (L)
|
6,958,600 H shares of 2.24% 0.78%
RMB1| each (P}
|
Matthews International 28,239,000 H shares of 9.08% 3.18%
Capital Management, LLC RMB 1 each (L)
J.PMorgan Fleming Asset 22,199,000 H shares of 714% 2.50%
Management (Asia) Inc. RMB 1 each (L)
J.PMorgan Fleming Asset 22,199,000 H shares of 714% 2.50%
Management Holdings Inc. RMB 1| each (L)
JF Asset Management 22,199,000 H shares of 714% 2.50%
Limited RMB 1| each (L)
\
OppenheimerFunds, Inc 19,000,000 $hares of 6.1 % 2.14%
RMB W‘ each (L)

|
I
\
I
|
|
|
\
I
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i Percentage
| of respective Percentage
i Class and class of share of total
% Name of shareholder no. of Securities (Note) capital share capital
Platinum Asset 18,837000 H shares of 6.06% 2.12%
Management Limited RMB 1 each (L)
as trustee for the Platinum Asset
Management Trust
JPMorgan Chase & Co. 18,565,000 H shares of 5.97% 2.09%
RMB1 each (L)
237000 H shares of 0.08% 0.03%
RMB1 each (P)
China TravelSky 198,486,500 Domestic 34.38% 22.35%
Holding Company shares of RMB 1 each (L)
China Southern Air 116,460,500 Domestic 20.17% 13.11%
Holding Company shares of RMB 1 each (L)
China Eastern Air 109,414,500 Domestic 18.95% 12.32%
Holding Company shares of RMB 1 each (L)
China National Aviation 89,433,500 Domestic 15.49% 10.07%

Holding Company

shares of RMB 1 each (L)

Note: (L) - Long Position, (P) - Lending Pool

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December, 2005, no other persons or companies held an interest or
short positions of 5% or more of the issued share capital or in the respective class of shares of the
Company pursuant to the register required to be maintained under Section 336 of the Ordinance.

28
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PUBLIC FLOAT \

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules, based on the information that is publicly available t‘o the Company and within the knowledge of
the Directors.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at December 31, 2005, none of the Directors, Su*pervisqrs or chief executive had any interest or short
position in any shares, underlying shares and debenture}s of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Ordinance) that is required to be recorded in the register

maintained in accordance with Section 352 of the Ordinance, or any interest required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Mod@l\ Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issues ("Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 1(5 to the Listing Rules. None of the Directors,
Supervisors or chief executive of the Company or their rejspective associates had been granted or had
exercised any rights to subscribe the securities of the Company or any of its associated corporation (as
defined in Part XV of the Ordinance) for Year 2005. 1

|

~

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Each existing member of the Board and Supervisory Committee of the Company has entered into a service
agreement with the Company. All existing Directors and Supervisors will serve a term up to December
5, 2006. Directors and Supervisors may serve consecutive terms of three years each if re-elected at
general meetings. As at December 31 2005, no Directors or‘ Supervisors, proposed to enter into a service

agreement which would not expire or determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation {other than statutory compensation). |

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN CONTRACTS

Certain existing members of the Board and Supervisecry CPmminee are alsc members of management
of various Chinese commercial airlines which are shareholders of the Company. The contracts or transactions
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and such airline shareholders have been
referred to in the section “"Connected Transactions” of this |Report of Directors. Save as disclosed in that
section, none of the Directors or Supervisors of the Compi)any had a material direct or indirect interest
in any contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during Year

2005.

|
\
|
\
l
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the remuneration of Directors and Supervisors are set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALIZED
No interest was capitalized for the Group for Year 2005.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during Year 2005 are summarised in Note 13
to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group for Year 2005 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in shareholders’ equity.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.230 per share for Year 2005.

STATUTORY PUBLIC WELFARE FUND

Details in relation to the statutory public welfare fund, such as the nature and application of the fund,
and the basis of its calculation, are set out in Note 32 to the financial statements. Details of movements
of the fund are se{ out in the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity as part of the
statutory reserves.

EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the employees’ retirement scheme of the Group are set out in Note 8 to the financial
statements.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

[
|
|
|

Societe Internationale de T&lécommunications Aeronautiqués S.C. ("SITA S.C") was the largest supplier

to the Group for Year 2005 and the total network usage fe‘es paid to SITA S.C. in Year 2005 accounted

for 8.1% of the Group's total operating expenses {excluding depreciation and amortization expenses).
During Year 2005, the total amount paid to the five Iargestlsuppliers of the Group accounted for 18.5%
of the Group's total operating expenses (excluding deprec;iation and amortization expenses).

|
Sales to the largest customer of the Group, China Southern Air Holding Company, accounted for 17.7%
of the Group's total revenues for Year 2005. During Year iZOOS, total sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 58.9% of the Group's total revenL}Jes. Three of these top five customers, China
Southern Air Holding Company, China Eastern Air Holding ¢ompany, and China National Aviation Holding
Company, are the principal shareholders of the Company, ﬁo\dmg an aggregate of approximately 35.5%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at Decemb}er 31, 2005. The aggregate revenue derived
from the above major customers is set out in Note 37 toi the financial statements.

|
Save as disclosed above and in Note 37 to the financial statements, none of the Directors, Supervisors
and their associates nor any shareholder (which to the knc‘awledge of the Directors hold more than 5%

. . . | , .
of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in any of the aforementioned suppliers and customers.
|

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
|

|
!
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associated ;companies as at December 31, 2005 are set

out in Note 1 to the financial statements. \
\

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM ISSUANCE OE H SHARES

|

The H shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exch%nge on February 7 2001, and the net proceeds
from the issuance of H shares amounted to approximately HK$1,186.0 million. For the year ended

, | .
December 31, 2005, such amount has been used in the s‘ame manner as set out in the prospectus of

the Company dated January 29, 2001. In particular: i
|
J
. approximately RMB1,087.0 million (HK$1,044.9 million) was used to finance part of the funding

requirements of the aviation information technolog;y service;

. approximately RMB8&.4 million (HK$6.2 million) vvas“ used to finance the expansion of other new
businesses of the Company; and ‘
1

. approximately RMB140.3 million (HK$134.9 miIIio1n) was used for expenses of daily operating

activities. ;

31

As mentioned above, as at 31 December 2005, the Company has used all of the proceeds from the
issurance of H Shares in the same manner as set out m(‘the prospectus.

|
|
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The Board believes that the Company currently has sufficient capital for its operations, including future
expansion of its businesses in the PRC, and potential strategic acquisition or investments which the

Company may decide to pursue in the future.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Ongoing Connected Transactions

During Year 2005, the Group continued to carry out the following transactions, which constitute connected
transactions as defined in the Listing Rules, and are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules:

(a)

(b)

Provision of Services and Technological Support by the Group to the Company’s Promoters

In Year 2005, the Group continued to provide certain promoters (other than CTHC) or as the case
may be, their respective subsidiaries with services and technological support, including aviation
information technology service and its related business services. The service fees payable by such
promoters (or, as the case may be, their respective subsidiaries) to the Group was determined
in accordance with the pricing schedule prescribed by the General Administration of Civil Aviation
of China (FEIRFBIZ4/3). Such promoters, and, as the case may be, their respective subsidiaries,
being associates of such promoters, are connected persons of the Company.

For Year 2005, total payments made by such promoters (or, as the case may be, their
respective subsidiaries) to the Group amounted to approximately RMB1,058.7 million (2004:
RMB887.0 million). Please refer to Note 37 to the financial statements for further details and
financial information relating to the provision of such services by the Group during Year 2005.
Please also refer to the announcement and circular dated March 17 2006 and April 7, 2006
respectivély in relation to the continuing connected transaction for further details of these
continuing connected transactions.

Lease of Properties by the Company from CTHC

The Company continued to lease two properties from CTHC in Year 2005. Since CTHC is one of
the promoters of the Company and a substantial shareholder of the Company, CTHC is regarded
as a connected person of the Company. Details and financial information relating to such leases
during Year 2005 are set out in Note 37 to the financial statements.

For Year 2005, total payments made by the Company to CTHC amounted to approximately
RMB38,609,000 (2004: RMB34,571,000).
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Transaction between SITA INC. and InfoSky Technologyi Co., Ltd. (“InfoSky”)

\

|
During Year 2005, SITA INC. provided InfoSky with aiir cargo information management services in
return for payment based on usage at the agre‘ed charges. As Société Internationale de
Télecommunications. Aeronautiques Greater China l—\ioldings Limited (“SITAGCH") is a substantia!
shareholder of InfoSky and SITA INC. is an indirect holding company of SITAGCH, SITA INC. is a
connected person of the Company. !

|
For Year 2005, total payments made by InfoSky toi SITA INC. amounted to US$714,241 (2004
US$599,180). ‘

}

|
Data Network Usage Fees Paid by the Company to SITA S.C.

During Year 2005, the Company continued to engage SITA S.C. in providing data network services
to the Company. The data network usage fees were determined based on the rates agreed between

SITA S.C. and the Company.
|

Since both SITA INC. and SITA S.C. are owned a‘nd managed by almost the same group of

shareholders, SITA S.C. is an associate of SITAGCH, and SITA S.C. is therefore considered as a
connected person of the Company.

For Year 2005, the network usage fees payable py the Company to SITA S.C. amounted to
RMB38,576,816 (2004 RMB45,480,450).

Transactions between the Company and the Service Con\‘ipanies

\
The service companies {the “Service Companies”) lare the companies established between the

Company and certaini promoters for distributing the ;})roducts of the Company and providing better
service to customersiin different regions. Since 'suchi promoters are entitied to exercise, or control
the exercise of 10% or more of the voting power at ar}wy general meeting of the Service Companies,
the Service Companies are regarded as connected pe?sons of the Company. The Service Companies
pay fees to the Company for using mainframe (eSOLcheS, link with the Company’s data network,
terminal equipment and connection and installation of and printers at the rates prescribed by the
General Administration of Civil Aviation of China (TEIXBMZELRR).
!
The Service Companies also provide front end techmical supports for airport passenger processing
system (APP system),and are entitled to sharing the profit generated from APP system with the
Company. }
\
For Year 2005, the Company’s fees received from anld paid to the Service Companies aggregated
to RMB35,096,947 (2004: RMB26,009,427). ;

\
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’

fn the opinion of the independent non-executive directors of the Company, the said connected

transactions:
{i) were entered into by the Graup in the ordinary and usual course of its business;
(ii) were conducted either

(a) on normal commercial terms; or

(b) (where there is no available comparison) on terms no less favourable than terms
available to or from independent third parties and terms that are fair and reasonable
so far as independent shareholders of the Company are concerned;

(il were entered into either

(a) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole;
or

(b) (where there are no such agreements) on terms no less favourable than those
available to or from independent third parties;

(iv) if they fall within any of the following categories, did not exceed the upper limits set out
below for the financial year ended December 31, 2005:

- e e e ey

j Categories of transactions Cap Amount
Leasing and using properties RMB40.00 million
Transaction between InfoSky and SITA INC. US$5.00 million
Transaction between the Company and

the Service Companies RMB84.00 million
Transaction between the Company and SITA S.C, RMB72.00 million

In relation to such connected transactions, the Company has received a letter from the auditors stating
that such connected transactions:

(a) have received the approval of the Board;

(b) were entered into in accordance with the pricing policies as stated in the notes to the financial
statements of the Company;

(c) were entered into in accordance with the terms of the respective agreements and documents
governing those transactions; and

(d) the aggregate amounts of the transactions have not exceeded the upper limits (referred to in (iv)
above).

TravelSky Technology Limited  Annual Report 2005




OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS |

\
On November 17 and December 8, 2005, the Company }entered intc Financial Management System
Enhancement Service Agreement and Computer Software Development Service Agreement respectively
with Asia Technology Development Center (“Asia Technolog:y”), pursuant to which the Company engaged
Asia Technology to provide technology development service:s‘ As Asia Technology, being an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of CTHC, is an associate of CTHC, the |promoter and substantial shareholder of the
Company, the said technology development service agre}*ements constituted connected transactions
under the Listing Rules. The total consideration payable b{/ the Company under the two agreements is
RMB15,900,000. Since each of the applicable percentage ra;tios referred to in Rule 14A.32(1) of the Listing
Rules in relation to such transactions is less than 2.5%, approval from the Company's independent
shareholders was not required. The Company have issued ah announcement on December 8, 2005 setting
out the terms of such transactions. |

|

!
TRUST DEPOSITS AND IRRECOVERABLE OVERDUE TIME DEPOSITS

|
As at December 31, 2005, the Group did not have any trust deposits or irrecoverable overdue time

deposits. All of the Group’s cash deposits are placed with ‘oommercial banks and are in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to shareholders by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
For Year 2005, the Group did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Audit Committee of the Company has discussed and re}vievved with the Company’s management the
financial information contained in this annual report, and haslalso discussed certain other matters including
internal control and financial reporting procedures of the Ciompany. The Board is of the opinion that the
Company has complied with the requirements of the Codelof Corporate Governance Practices as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Year 2005. ‘Details of the compliance issues are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” contained im this énnua\ report.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company will be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, May 25, 2006 to expand the scope of business of the
Company. Details of the proposed amendments are set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting
contained in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association of the Company or
under PRC laws.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

The Group was not involved in any material litigation or dispute in Year 2005.

AUDITORS

Since the date of incorporation of the Company to December 31, 2001, Arthur Andersen & Co in Hong
Kong and Arthur Andersen ¢ Hua Qiang in the PRC were the Company's international and PRC auditors,

respectively.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong) and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong
Tian CPAs Ltd. Co. {Certified Public Accountants in the PRC) are respectively the Company's international
and PRC auditors for Year 2002, Year 2003, Year 2004 and Year 2005. A resolution to appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Ltd. Co. as the Company's
international auditors and the Company’'s PRC auditors, respectively, for the year ending December 31,
2006 will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, May 25,

2006.
By order of the Board
Zhu Yong
Chairman
April 7, 2006
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|
REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE \;

Dear Shareholders,
!

During the year ended December 31, 2005, members of the second Supervisory Committee of the

Company (the "Supervisory Committee”) have diligently p}erformed their duties, during their tenure, in

ensuring that the Company has observed and complied with the Listing Rules, the Company Law of the

PRC, the Articles of Association of the Company and other relevant legislations and regulations to protect

the interests of the Company and its shareholders, !
|

|
The Supervisory Committee convened two meetings during Year 2005 to monitor corporate governance

of the C{pmpany. The Supervisory Committee also reviewed the Company's annual financial statements
for 2004 and interim financial statements for 2005, and attended meetings of the Board of Directors {the
“Board”) to effectively monitor the policies and decisions ‘made by the Board as to whether they are in
compliance with the Listing Rules, the relevant Iegislativeiand regulatory requirements of the PRC, the
Articles of Association of the Company, and the interests olf the Company and shareholders, and offered
proper suggestions to the Board and the management. :

\
The Supervisory Committee has carefully reviewed the C:ompany’s financial statements for Year 2005
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and considers that the financial statements give a true anq fair view of the financial position and results
of operations of the Company and they comply with the regulations applicable to the Company.

|
The Supervisory Committee confirms that the Company d:urmg Year 2005 has not been involved in any
material litigation or proceedings or arbitration, and there 5 no litigation or claim of material importance
pending or threatened by or against the Company. |

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied that the Board a:nd senior management of the Company are
committed to act honestly and to perform their duties dili}gently, so as to protect the best interests of
the Company and shareholders for Year 2005. The Superv;isory Committee confirms that the report of
the Board for Year 2005 reflected the actual operational circumstances of the Company. In the opinion
of the Supervisory Committee, the Company has ach\'eveq satisfactory results during this financial year
and the Supervisory Committee has confidence in the Company's future prospects and development.

|

|

Byl Order of the Supervisory Committee
| Li Xiaojun
Cha:irperson of the Supervisory Committee

April 7, 2006
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REPORT OF INTERNATIONAL AUDITORS

PRICEAVATERHOUSE(QOPERS
BERAB TG ERH PricewaterhouseCoopers

22nd Floor Prince’s Building

Central Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile {852) 2810 9888

REPORT OF INTERNATIONAL AUDITORS
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TRAVELSKY TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
{Established in the People's Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of TravelSky Technology Limited {the “Company”) and
consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) as of December 31, 2005 and the related consolidated statement of income, cash flows and changes
in shareholders’ equity of the Group for the year then ended. These financial statements set out on pages
39 to 87 are the responsibility of the Company’'s management. [t is our responsibility to form an independent
opinion, based on our audit, on these financial statements and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We dc not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the content of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and
the Group as of December 31, 2005 and of the results of operations of the Group and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

April 72006
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(Amounts expressed in thoust%nds of Renminbi (“RMB” ), except per share data)

For the year ended December 31 ¢

Note 2005 2004
Restated
|
Revenues ‘
Aviation information technology service ‘} 1,238,003 1,025,725
Data network and others | 258,781 257125
|
~Total revenues 5| 1,496,784 1,282,850
|
Business taxes and other surcharges ‘ (49,764) (42,277)
Net revenues \ 1,447,020 1,240,573
J
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortisation ; (182,015) (166,741)
Network usage ‘ (59,982) {70,671)
Personnel | (157,748) (133,829)
Operating lease rentals | (61,878) (49,406)
Technical support and maintenance fees {68,138) (40,456)
Commission and promaotion expenses (148,004) (155,702)
Other operating expenses (225,392) (170,624)
Total operating expenses i (903,157) (787,429)
Operating profit | 543,863 453,144
Financial income, net : 38,441 37558
Share of results of associated companies i 11,312 10,934
Other income/{expenses), net ‘ 1,141 (2,038)
Profit before taxation 8 594,757 499,598
Taxation 10 (51,063) (40,188)
Profit after taxation ‘ 543,694 459,410
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Company 529,647 449,181
Minority interests 1 14,047 10,229
‘ 543,694 458,410
\
Earnings per share for profit attributable to |
the equity holders of the Company,
Basic and diluted (RMB) 1 0.60 0.51
Dividends 12 204,276 177632

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
|
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

} As at December 31 ’
| Note 2005 2004 |

; Restated :
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net 13 728,325 475,118
Intangible assets, net 14 13,232 15,177
Investments in associated companies 16 53,854 42,424
Other long-term investment 17 100,000 100,000
Other long-term assets 18 20,906 16,142
916,317 648,861
Current assets
Inventories 19 3,390 4,098
Accounts receivable, net 20 61,516 38,170
Due from associated companies 23 1,227 —
Due from related parties, net 21,37(3) 272,991 112,811
Prepayments and other current assets 24 48,072 82,979
Short-term investments - 1,749
Short-term bank deposits 25 1,947,277 625,378
Cash and cash equivalents 26 856,811 2,236,843
3,191,284 3,102,028
Total assets 4,107,601 3,750,889
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Company
Paid-In capital 30 888,158 888,158
Reserves 31 1,911,454 1,719,540
Retained earnings 32
- Proposed final dividend 12 204,276 177632
- Others 584,304 451,297
3,688,192 3,236,627
Minority interests 61,296 49,456
Total equity 3,649,488 3,286,083
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 27 326,461 404,477
Due to related parties 28 93,981 27048
Taxes payable 29 35,698 30,138
Deferred revenue 1,973 3,143
458,113 464,806
Total equity and liabilities 4,107,601 3,750,889
Net current assets 2,733,171 2,637222
Total assets less current liabilities 3,649,488 3,286,083
40 Approved by the Board of Directors on April 7, 2006.
Zhu Yong Zhu Xiao Xing
Chairman Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

TravelSky Technology Limited  Annual Report 2005




BALANCE SHEET

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

As at December 31

Note 2005 2004
Restated |
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equioment, net 1§ 695,254 441,275
Intangible assets, net 14 12,450 13,570
Investments in subsidiaries 15 35,951 34,685
Investments in associated companies 16 11,890 8,890
Other long-term investment 17 100,000 100,000
Other long-term assets 18 19,204 13,807
i 874,749 612,227
Current assets ‘
Inventories 19 352 221
Accounts receivable, net 2@ 23,945 10,041
Due from subsidiaries 22 36,782 57102
Due from associated companies 23 1,227 —
Due from related parties, net 21,3?(3) 266,929 105,333
Prepayments and other current assets 26} 41,886 76,255
Short-term bank deposits 25 1,886,636 579,155
Cash and cash equivalents 2§ 756,646 2,133,725
| 3,014,403 2,961,832
|
Total assets : 3,889,152 3,574,059
EQUITY |
Capital and reserves attributable to |
equity holders of the Company ;‘
Paid-In capital 30 888,158 888,158
Reserves 3 1,907,966 1,716,955
Retained earnings 32
- Proposed final dividend 12 204,276 177632
- Others | 472,335 353,726
\
Total equity ‘ 3,472,735 3,136,471
LIABILITIES |
Current liabilities ‘
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 27 301,456 393,990
Due to related parties 28 84,154 15,767
Taxes payable 29 30,807 27,831
i 416,417 437588
Total equity and liabilities : 3,889,152 3,574,059
[
Net current assets } 2,597,986 2,524,244
Total assets less current liabilities ‘ 3,472,735 3,136,471

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financiial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS® EqQuiTy

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Paid-In Retained Minority
Note capital Reserves earnings Interests Total :

Balance as at January 1, 2004

as previously reported as equity 888,158 1,584,817 405,063 — 2,878,038
Balance as at January 1, 2004

as previously separately reported

as minority interests — — — 40,305 40,305
Balance at January 1, 2004,

as restated 888,158 1,584,817 405,083 40,305 2,918,343
Profit for the year — - 449,181 10,229 459,410
Dividend relating to 2003 — - (90,592) — (90,692}
Dividends paid to minority

shareholders of subsidiaries — — — (1,078) {1,078}
Appropriation to reserves 31, 32 — 134,723 (134,723) — —
Balance at December 31, 2004 888,158 1,719,540 628,929 49,456 3,286,083

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Paid-In Retained Minority
Note capital Reserves earnings Interests Total

Balance as at January 1, 2005

as previously reported as equity 888,158 1,719,540 628,929 — 3,236,627
Balance as at January 1, 2005 as

previously separately reported

as minority interests — - - 49,456 49,456

Balance at January 1, 2005,

as restated 888,158 1,719,540 628,929 49,458 3,286,083
Profit for the year — - 529,647 14,047 543,694
Dividend relating to 2004 12 — — (177,632} - (177632)
Dividends paid to minority

shareholders of subsidiaries — - — (3,410} (3,410
Currency translation differences 32 — (450} — - (450)
Appropriation to reserves 31,32 — 192,364 (192,364) - —
Capital contribution — — — 1,203 1,203
Balance at December 31, 2005 888,158 1,911,454 788,580 61,296 3,649,488

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CasH FLows

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Renminbi)

For the year ended December 31

Note 2005 2004
|
Cash flows from operating activities 1
Cash generated from operations 33 453,234 621,123
Long term rental deposit ; (4,064) (12,903)
Enterprise income tax paid ‘ (46,698) (32,737)
|
Net cash provided by operating activities | 402,472 575,483
J
Cash flows from investing activities !
Purchases of property, plant, equipment ‘
and intangible assets (393,442) (147732)
Increase in short-term bank depaosits (1,321,899} (120,378)
Interest received 58,083 17846
Dividends received from associated companies | 2,050 4,837
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment | 1,504 972
Proceeds from redemption of short-term investments 1,749 —
Investment to associated companies : (4,555) —
Increase in other long-term assets : (160) (234)
i
Net cash used in investing activities i (1,656,670) (244,689)
Cash flows from financing activities
Investment from minority shareholders of subsidiaries 1,203 —
Dividend paid to group shareholders (109,159) (128,903)
Dividend paid to minority shareholders of subsidiaries (3,3086) —
Net cash used in financing activities (111,262} (128,903)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents ‘ (14,572} —
Net (Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,380,032) 201,891
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,236,843 2,034,952
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 2:6 856,811 2,236,843
|
|
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Amounts expressed in Renmibi (“RMB”’) unless otherwise stated)

COMPANY ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

TravelSky Technology Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") on October 18, 2000 to engage in the provision of aviation information technology service and
related services in the PRC.

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on February 7 2001. The address
of its registered office is Floor 18-20, South Wing, Pack C, Raycom InfoTech Park, No.2, Ke Xue Yuan
South Road, Haidian District, Beijing 100080, PRC.

As at December 31, 2005, the Company had direct or indirect interests in the following subsidiaries
and associated companies. All of these subsidiaries and associated companies are limited liability
companies incorporated in the PRC except for TravelSky Technology (Hong Kong) Limited, which is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong.

Issued
Percentage and fully ‘
Date of of equity paid capital }
. Name incorporation interest held RMB  Principal activities !
\ Direct Indirect \
Subsidiaries
Hainan Civil Aviation March 2, 64.78% — 6,615,000  Provision of electronic
Cares Co., Ltd. 1994 travel distribution and
("Hainan Cares") cargo management
services; and sale and
installation of the related
information systems
Cares Shenzhen April 14, 61.47% — 11,000,000  Provision of electronic
Co, Ltd. 1995 travel distribution and cargo
{"Shenzhen Cares”) management services; and
sale and installation of the
related information
systems
Cares Hubei Co., Ltd. July 25, 50% 12.5% 5,000,000  Provision of electronic
{("Hubei Cares”} 1997 travel distribution, airport

passenger processing and
cargo management
services; and sale and
installation of the related
information systems
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1.

COMPANY ORGANISATION AND PRINGIPAL ACTIVITIES (continued)

|
1

of Xiamen Ltd.
("Xiamen Cares”)

2001

Issued
Percentage and fully
‘ Date of of equity paid capital
' Name incorporation interest held RMB  Principal activities
Indirect
Subsidiaries (continued)
|
|
Cares Chongging December 1, I 9,800,000  Provision of electronic
Information 1998 1 trave! distribution,
Technology Co., Ltd. | alrport passenger
(“Chongaing Cares”) i processing and cargo
i management services;
[ and sale and
: installation of the
| related information
i systems
i
Aviation Cares of June 15, : — 2,000,000  Computer hardware
Yunnan Information 2000 ; and software
Co., Ltd. j development and data
{"Yunnan Cares") ‘ netwark services
|
InfoSky Technology September 20, I 23,148,285  Provision of cargo
Co., Ltd. 2000 ‘ management services and
("InfoSky") i related software and
} technology development;
i and provision of technical
1 support, training and
} consulting services
TravelSky Technology December 13, I 3,182,873  Commercial services
{Hong Kong) Limited 2000 :
{"Hong Kong Cares") |
\
Civil Aviation Cares September 14, P = 4,000,000  Computer hardware

and software
development and data
network services
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NOTES TO0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts expressed in Renmibi (“RMB” ) unless otherwise stated)

1. COMPANY ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (continued)

! ) Issued
Percentage and fully
Date of of equity paid capital
- Name incorporation interest held RMB  Principal activities
Direct  Indirect
Subsidiaries (continued)
Civil Aviation Cares January 11, 51% — 2,000,000  Computer hardware
of Qingdao Ltd. 2002 and software
("Qingdao Cares”) development and data
network services
Civil Aviation July 9, 51% - 5,000,000  Computer hardware
Cares of Xi'an Ltd. 2002 and software
{("Xi'an Cares”) development and data
network services
Civil Avigtion August 16, 51% — 3,000,000  Computer hardware
Cares Technology 2002 and software
of Xinjiang Ltd. development and data
("Xinjiang Cares”) network services

During the year, Shenzhen Cares had capitalized RMB4,000,000 of its reserves to share capital. As a
result, its share capital has increased from RMB7000,000 to RMB11,000,000.

Infosky had received additional capital contributions from its existing shareholders of RMiB2,454,285
in cash. As a result, the share capital of Infosky increased from RMB20,695,000 to RMB23,149,285.

Hongkong Cares had capitalized RMB20,806 of its retained earnings to share capital. As a result, its
share capital has increased from RMB3,162,067 to RMB3,182,873.

Xi'an Cares had capitalized RMB3,000,000 of its retained earnings to share capital. As a result, its share
capital has increased from RMB2,000,000 to RMB5,000,000.

The Company and its subsidiaries are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”
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1.  COMPANY ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (continued)
|
1

Issued
Percentage and fully paid
Date of of equity capital
Name incorporation interest held RMB  Principal activities
Direct  Indirect
\

Associated Companies j

Shanghai Civil May 21, 41% ; — 10,000,000  Computer hardware and
Aviation East China 1999 ( software development
Cares System \ and data netwark services
Integration Co., Ltd. ‘

{"Huadong Cares”) |

Shenyang Civil November 2, 46% = 2,000,000  Computer hardware and
Aviation Cares of 1999 3 software development
Northeast China, Ltd. and data network services
{"Dongbei Cares”) \

Aviation Cares of November 28, 44% .= 2,000,000  Computer hardware and
Southwest Chengdu, Ltd. 1999 | software development
{"Xinan Cares") l and data network services

Yunnan TravelSky Airport April 1, 40% - 6,000,000  Computer hardware and
Technology Limited 2003 software development
{"Yunnan Cares") i and technical consulting

} services

Heilongjiang TravelSky April 30, 50% ; — 6,000,000  Computer hardware and
Airport Technology Limited 2003 | software development
("Heilongjiang Cares”) } and technical consulting

\ service

Shanghai Dongmei September 28, 50% ; — 1,500,000  Sales of computers and
Aviation Tourism 2003 ‘ related parts and provision
Online Co., Ltd | of network, technical
("Shanghai Cares") ; services and economic

} consulting service

Dalian Travelsky Airport January 28, 50% b= 6,000,000  Computer hardware and

Technology Limited 2005 : software development

{"Dalian Cares”)

and technical consulting
service
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Notes 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts expressed in Renmibi (“RMB”’) unless otherwise stated)

1. COMPANY ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (continued)

During the year, the Company and Dalian International Airport jointly incorporated Dalian Travelsky Airport
Technology Limited (“Dalian Cares”) that provides computer hardware and software development and
technical consulting services. The Company had invested RMB3,000,000 in cash for a 50% equity
interest of Dalian Cares.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS"). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying
the Company's accounting pelicies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.

3A. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In Year 2005, the Group adopted certain new or revised International Accounting Standards ("IAS”),
which are relevant to its operations. The figures in respect of Year 2004 have also been amended where
necessary, in accordance with the relevant requirements.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

IAS 2 Inventories

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
IAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

IAS 17 Leases

IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

IAS 28 Investments in Associates

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
IAS 33 Earnings per Share

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets

IAS 38 Intangible Assets

[AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
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3A. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES qcontinued)

The adoption of these new or revised IAS did not result in material changes to the Group's principal

accounting policies or have any significant impact on the results of operations and financial position

of the Group, except for the adoption of IAS 1, IAS 27“and IAS 28 as detailed below.

\
IAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority interest:.

With effect from January 1, 2005 and in accordance v;vith IAS 27 and IAS 28, the investments in
subsidiaries and associated companies are accounted for at cost less impairment provision for losses,

in the Company's separate financial statements. i
|

. ) . . ! .
This change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively as follows:

.: Before Effect of As
adoption of adoption of restated |
‘ new/revised IAS new/revised IAS 2004
! RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB000
|
As at January 1, 20065:
Investments in subsidiaries 86,7151 (51,466) 34,685
Investments in associated companies 42,424 (33,534) 8,890
Retained earnings (616,3%8) 85,000 (531,358)

3B. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the financial statements of the Company and

its subsidiaries are as follows:

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the} financial statements of the Company and all

its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the

power to govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existénce and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group

controls ancther entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is

transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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. Notis To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

({Amounts expressed in Renmibi (“RMB” ) unless otherwise stated)

3B. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

TravelSky Technology Limited  Annual Report 2005

Consolidation (continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used for acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group.
Companies acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date of acquisition or to the date of disposal. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. ldentifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any
minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acqguisition is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized
directly in the income statement.

Intercompany balances and transactions, including interrcompany profits and unrealised profits
and losses are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with associated companies
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associated companies, against the
investment in the associated companies. Unrealised losses are eliminated similarly but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.

Consclidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivables.

Associated companies

Associated companies are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. In the
consolidated financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group's investment in associates
includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition. Equity
accounting involves recognizing in the consolidated income statement the Group’s share of the
profit or loss for the year of the associated companies.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds the carrying amount of the investment, the investment

is reported at nil value and recognition of losses is discontinued except to the extent of the

Group's commitment.




3B. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(0

I
|
|
i
|

Associated companies (continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments!in associated companies are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. The results on associated companies are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivables.

|
Foreign currencies :
|
Based on the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances, the functional
currencies of the Company and its PRC subsidfaries are determined to be RMB, and the
functional currency of Travelsky Technology {Hong Kong) Limited is determined to be Hong Kong
dollars. The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company's

functional and presentation currency. |

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at ?xchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fo;reign currencies are translated at exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at historical rateis. The exchange differences arising in these
cases are included in the consclidated income stFtement.

|
The results and financial position of all the group erﬁtities that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated int%) the presentation currency as follows:
|
. Assets and liabilities for each balance shee{t presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet; ;

. Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates
{unless this average is not a reasonable apprbximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the translation dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and ;

J

|
. All resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate component of equity.
\

|
J
\
\
|
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Notes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts expressed in Renmibi (“RMB" ) unless otherwise stated)

3B. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss. Historical cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditures incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to expense
in the year in which they are incurred. When the expenditure results in increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the asset, the expenditure is
capitalized.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives, after taking into consideration their estimated residual value. The
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Computer systems and software 3-11 years
Motor vehicles 6 years
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 5-9 years

When assets are sold or retired, their costs and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from
the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposals is included in the determination
of net profit.

Assets under construction are stated at cost. Costs include construction and acquisition costs,
and interest charges arising from borrowings used to finance the assets during the period of
construction or installation and testing. No provision for depreciation is made on assets under
construction until such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets mainly represent purchased software.

Cost of acquisition of the new software is capitalized and treated as an intangible asset if these
costs are not an integral part of the related hardware. Software is amortized on a straight line
basis over 3 years.

Costs incurred in order to restore or maintain the future economic benefits that an enterprise

can expect from the originally assessed standard of performance of existing software systems
are recognized as an expense when the restoration or maintenance work is carried out.
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3B. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(2)

Research and development costs

Expenditures for research and development are charged against income in the period incurred
except for software development costs which comply strictly with the following criteria:

. The software is clearly defined and costs aﬁe separately identified and measured reliably;
. The technical feasibility of the software is|demonstrated;
. The software will be sold or used in-house;
. A potential market for the software. or its usefulness for internal use is demonstrated,
and 1
{
. Adeguate technical, financial and other resources required for completion of the software

development are available.
‘ . .
Capitalized development costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over their expected useful
|
lives. The period of amortization does not norm;aHy exceed b years. During the year ended
December 31, 2005, no development costs wére capitalized as they did not meet all the

conditions listed above (2004: nil). ‘
Impairment of assets :
!
Financial instruments are reviewed for impairme;nt at each balance sheet date.
|
|

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, whenever it is probable that the company will not
collect all amounts due according to the contraictua\ terms of loans, receivables or held-to-
maturity investments, an impairment or bad debtj loss is recognized in the income statement.
Reversal of impairment losses previously recognized is recorded when the decrease in impairment
loss can be objectively quantified and related to an event occurring after the write-down. Such
reversal is recorded in income. However, the increased carrying amount is only recognized to
the extent it does not exceed what amortized cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognized.

For available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity
is included in net profit or loss for the period wHen there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired. The recoverable amount of a debt instrument remeasured to fair value is the present
value of expected future cash flows discounted a:t the current market interest rates for a similar
financial asset. A reversal of an impairment loss is recorded when the decrease in the impairment
loss can be objectively related to an event occﬂJrrmg after the write down. Such reversal is
recorded in income. ‘
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NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts expressed in Renmibi ( "RMB”) unless otherwise stated)

3B. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investment in subsidiaries and associated
companies are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in income for items
of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investment in subsidiaries and associated
companies carried at cost. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’'s net selling price
or value in use. The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an
arm’s length transaction while value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its
useful life. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Reversal of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication
that the impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exist or have decreased. The
reversal is recorded in income. However, the increased carrying amount of an asset due to a
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized to the extent it does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognized for that asset in prior years.

Investments

The Group classified its investments into the following categories: held-to-maturity, trading and
available-for-sale. Investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the
Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity other than loans and receivables
originated by the Company are classified as held-to-maturity investments. Investments acquired
principally for the purpose of generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price are
classified as trading. All other investments, other than loans and receivables originated by the

company, are classified as available-forsale.

Held-to-maturity investments are included in non-current assets unless they mature within 12
months of the balance sheet date. Investments held for trading are included in current assets.
Available-for-sale investments are classified as current assets if management intends to realize
them within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

All purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date, which is the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Investments are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given for
them, including transaction costs.
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3B. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (co%ntinued)

(h)

(i)

§)

(k)

i

Investments (continued)

Available-for-sale and trading investments are SL;Jbsequently carried at fair value without any
deduction for transaction costs by reference to their quoted market price at the balance sheet

date. |

Gains or losses on measurement to fair value oﬂJ available-for-sale investments are recognized
directly in the fair value reserve in shareholders’ ehuity, until the investment is sold or otherwise
disposed off, or until it is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in equity is included in ne& profit or loss for the period.

|
Changes in the fair values of trading investments are included in financial expense.

|
Held-to-maturity investments are carried at am‘brtized cost using the effective interest rate
method. |

i

Operating leases)

|
Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of the assets remain with
the lessor are accounted for as operating Ieases:. Rental payments under operating leases are
charged to expense based on the straight-line method over the period of the leases.

!
Inventories ‘
|
Inventaries, which principally comprise equipmer?wt for sale, spare parts and consumable items,
are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable}value. Cost is determined based on the first-
in, first-out ("FIFO") method and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present Iocati:on and condition. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make thg sale.

r

Accounts receivable 1

|
Accounts receivable is recognized initially at fair v:alue and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of
the provision is the difference between the ass%at’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the eﬁ?ctive interest rate. The amount of the provision

|

is recognized in the income statement. :
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NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts expressed in Renmibi (“RMB”) unless otherwise stated)

3B. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

M

(m)

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. Cash represents cash in hand
and deposits with banks or other financial institutions which are repayable on demand. Cash
equivalents represent short-term, highly liguid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Taxation

Taxation of the Group except for TravelSky Technology (Hong Kong) Limited is provided based
on the tax laws and regulations applicable to PRC enterprises. The Group provides for PRC
enterprise income tax on the basis of its income for statutory financial reporting purposes,
adjusted for income and expense items that are not assessable or deductible for tax purposes.

Hong Kong profits tax of TravelSky Technology {Hong Kong) Limited is provided on the estimated
assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong during the year.

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of an asset or liability and its carrying amount in the balance sheet.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. The tax base
of an asset or liability is the amount attributed to that asset or liability for tax purposes. Deferred
tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Other tax ligbilities are provided in accordance with the regulations issued by the PRC government

authorities.
Retirement scheme

The fixed contributions for retirement benefits made under defined contribution schemes are
charged to expense in the year to which they relate.
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3B. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

!
Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Group has a:present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required toi settle the obligation, and a reliable estimation
can be made for the amount of the obligation. Rrovisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best est\';mation. Where the effect of the time value of
money is materiall the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. When d:iscountmg is used, the increase in provision
reflecting the passage of time is recognized as jnterest expense.

i
Revenue recognition !
|
|

Revenue is recognized, net of sales discount, W‘hen it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs incurred or

to be incurred in respect of the transaction can'be measured reliably on the following basis:
|

. Revenue for aviation information technology services is recognized when the services are
rendered; :
|
. Revenue for data network services is rec}ognized when the services are rendered,;
|
. Sale of equipment is recognized when thé significant risks and rewards of ownership of

the goods have been transferred to the buyer;
1

. Revenue for equipment installation project is recognized by reference to the stage of
completion when this can be measured r;eliab!y. The stage of completion is determined
in the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the
estimated total contract costs. When thje outcome of the transaction involving the
rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognized only 1o the
extent of expenses recognized that are reccj)verable, In the period in which it is determined
that a loss will result from the performarHce of the contract, the entire amount of the
estimated ultimate loss is charged againsit income;

. Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis, taking into account the principal
amounts outstanding and the applicable interest rates; and

o Dividend income is recognized when the'right to receive payment is established.
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NoteSs To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts expressed in Renmibi (“RMB ") unless otherwise stated)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the Company to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates its estimates based on historical experience and
on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a) Sales discount

Revenues derived from aviation information technology services and data network services are
recognized net of sales discount. These sales discounts are estimated based on the ongoing
negotiations with the selected customers, taking into account of historical experiences and
industry performance.

(b)  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment of the Group are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off
their costs less accumulated impairment losses and estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The Group reviewed the useful lives periodically to ensure
that the method and rates of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic
benefits from the property, plant and equipment. The Group estimates the useful lives of the
property, plant and equipment as set out in Note 3B(d) based on the historical experience with
similar assets, taking into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation expenses
in the future periods will change if there are significant changes to these estimates.

(¢}  Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group considers both internal and external sources of information
to assess whether there is any indication that assets are impaired. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and an impairment loss is recognized to reduce
the carrying amount of the asset to its recoverable amount. Accordingly, there will be an impact
to the future results if there is a significant change in the recoverable amounts of the assets.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e

Fair value !

|
The Group estimates the fair value of its financial ;ssets and financial liabilities including accounts
receivable, prepayments, other current assets, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other
current liabilities for disclosure purposes by discounting its future contractual cash flows at the
estimated current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.
The future disclosed values will change if thereiare changes in the estimated market interest
rate. ;

Income taxes !

!
The Group is subject to income taxes in both PRC and HK jurisdictions. Significant judgment
is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determma‘tion is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognizes liabilities for antilcipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where thejfinal tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, SL:JCh differences will impact the income tax and

deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

|
REVENUES l

Revenues primarily comprise the service fees earned by the Group for the provision of the Group’s

|
aviation information technology services and related d§ta network services. A substantial portion of

these revenues was generated from the shareholders'of the Company.
|
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{Amounts expressed in Renmibi (“RMB”) unless otherwise stated)

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging (crediting) the following:

| 2005 2004
‘ RMB'000 AMB000 |
After charging:
Depreciation 171,871 156,633
Amortization 9,129 8,212
Leasehold amortization 1,015 1,896
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,240 5,516
Operating lease rentals 61,878 49,406
Provision (write back) for impairment of receivables 5,003 (1,299)
Cost of equipment sold 15,569 12,727
Contributions to defined contribution pension scheme 12,666 5,758
Auditors’ remuneration 2,145 1,785
Exchange loss 14,572 162
Contribution to housing fund 11,171 4,478
Research and development expenses 180,247 135,658
After crediting:
Interest income (53,013) (37,710)
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7.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS :

(1) Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments *

The following table sets out the emoluments paid to the Company’s directors and supervisors
during the year ended December 31, 2005 (tax‘inclusive):

l LYear ended December 31, 2005
] Salary, Allowances
3 and Benefits
[ {employer's Employer's
Name of Director / contribution Discretionary contribution to
| Supervisor Remuneration inclusive) bonuses  pension scheme Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000

Chairman of the Board ;

Mr. Zhu Yong * - b= - — -

Executive directors ‘

Mr. Zhu Xiaoxing - 190 232 16 438
Mr. Ding Weiping - 10 335 16 461
Mr. Song Jinxiang — C 10 33 16 461

Non-Executive Directors |

Mr. Wang Quanhua * — (- — _ _
Mr. Caa Jianxiong* - — — — _
Mr. Zhang Xueren {i} * — L _ _ _
Mr. Gong Guokui {ii] * — - — _ _
Mr. Rong Gang * — |
Mr. Yang Yatie * — [J— — - _
Mr. Li Xiaoguang * — :

Mr. Si Yupei * — - - _ _
Mr. Song Jian * - - - — —

Independent Non-Executive directors

M. Yick Wing Fat, Simonfiv) 54 - - - 54
Mr. Chow Kwok Wah, James 90 — — — P
Mr. Wu Jiapei 90 — - _ 90
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, Don {iii} 36 (- _ - K

Supervisors

Ms. Li Xiaojun * — L= — - -
Ms. Du Hongying * — - _ _ _
Mr. Zhang Yakun * - (- —_ — _
Mr. Wang Yonggiang * — - - — _
Mr. Chen Lihong * — - — — -
Mr. Tan Xiaoxu (Staff Representative Supervisor) — 103 29 16 410
Mr. Zhang Xin (Staff Representative Supervisor) — 73 142 16 231
Mr. Rao Geping {Independent Supervisor) - (- - — _

TravelSky Technology Limited  Annual Report 2005




NoTEs 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts expressed in Renmibi (“RMB”) unless otherwise stared)

7. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(1)  Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments (continued)

The following table sets out the emoluments paid to the Company’s directors and supervisors
during the year ended December 31, 2004 (tax inclusive):

Year ended December 31, 2004
Salary, Allowances
and Benefits
| {employer's Employer’s
Name of Director / contribution Discretionary  contribution to (
Supervisor Remuneration inclusive) bonuses  pension scheme Total E
AMB 000 AMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 AMB000

1

Chairman of the Board
Mr. Zhu Yong * — — - - —

Executive directors

Mr. Zhu Xiaoxing - % 237 13 344
Mr. Ding Weiping - 89 239 13 kIl
Mr. Song Jinxiang — 89 239 13 341

Non-Executive directors
Mr. Wang Quanhua * — - - - -
Mr. Cao Jianxiong * — — — — -
Mr. Zhang Xuerenfi} * — — — — —
Mr. Rong Gang * — - - _ _
Mr. Yang Yatie * — — — — —
Mr. Li Xiaoguang * - - - - -
Mr. Si Yupei * — — — - -
Mr. Song Jian * — — — —

Independent Non-Executive directors

Mr. Chow Kwok Wah, James P - - - 90
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, Don (iii) 90 - — — 90
Mr. Wu Jiapei 90 - - — 90

Supervisors

Ms. Li Xigojun * — — — - -
Ms. Du Hongying * - — - - —
Mr. Zhang Yakun * — — — - -
Mr. Wang Yonggiang * — — — - -
Mr. Chen Lihong * - - — — _
Mr. Tan Xiaoxu (Staff Representative Supervisor) — 86 223 13 322

Mr. Zhang Xin {Staff Representative Supervisor) — 51 M 13 185
Mr. Rao Geping {Independent Supervisor} - - — - -

* These directors and supervisors are employees of the shareholders of the Company or their
subsidiaries, and obtain emocluments from them.

i) Resigned on August 23, 2005
i) Appointed on August 23, 2005
iii) Resigned on August 23, 2005
iv) Appointed on August 23, 2005

During the years, no director had waived or agreed to waive any emolument.
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7.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued) !

(2)  Five highest paid individuals

Details of emoluments paid to the five highest-paid employees (mainly senior executives) are

as follows: ‘
1 2005 2004
| RMB’000 RMB’000 .
Basic salaries and allowances ‘ 620 447
Bonus f 1,559 1,210
Retirement benefits i 82 66
: 2,261 1,723
|

Number of directors ‘ 3

Number of employees 1 2 2
|
: 5 5

The annual emoluments paid during the year endéd December 31, 2005 to each of the directors
(including the five highest paid employees) fell within the band from RMB nil to RMB1 million
(2004: from RMB nil to RMB1 million). |

|
During the year ended December 31, 2005, no iemolument was paid to the five highest-paid
individuals (including directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office 1(2004: nil).

|
|

RETIREMENT BENEFITS !

|
All the full time employees of the Group are covered by a state-sponsored pension scheme under which
the employees are entitled to an annual pension equal t;o their basic salaries at their retirement dates.
The PRC government is responsible for the pension liability to these retired employees. The Group was
required to make specified contributions to the state-sponsored pension scheme at the rate of 20%
of the employees’ basic salaries for the year ended December 31, 2005 (2004: 20%). The contributions
to the pension scheme made by the Group for the y%aar ended December 31, 2005 amounted to
approximately RMB12,666,000 {2004: RMB5,758,000). Under this scheme, the Group has no obligation
for post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contrw’b%utions made.
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(Amounts expressed in Renmibi (“RMB” ) unless otherwise stated)

10.

HOUSING FUND

All the full-time employees of the Group are entitled to participate in a state-sponsored housing fund.
The fund can be used by the Group for the construction of employee quarters, by the employees for
housing purchases, or may be withdrawn upon their retirement. The Group is required to make annual
contributions to a state-sponsored housing fund equivalent to a certain percentage of each employee’s
salary. The contributions by the Group to the housing fund for the year ended December 31, 2005
amounted to approximately RMB11,171,000 (2004: RMB4,478,000).

The average number of employees in 2005 was 2,089 (2004: 1,825).
TAXATION

Income Tax

: 2005 2004

| RMB’000 AMB'000 |
PRC enterprise income tax - current 51,026 40,141
Hong Kong profits tax - current 37 47
51,063 40,188

Under PRC income tax law, the Company is subject to enterprise income tax ("EIT") at a rate of 33%
on the taxable income as reported in its statutory accounts which are prepared based on the accounting
principles and financial regulations applicable to PRC enterprises. The Company was registered as a
new technology enterprise in October 2000 in Zhongguancun Haidian Science Park and has been
approved by the Haidian State Tax Bureau {Document (2000) Haiguoshuiersuo No.19) to enjoy an EIT
preferential rate of 75% from January 1, 2003 to December 31, 2005.

The Company's subsidiaries are entitled to different preferential tax rates, ranging from 0 to 33%. These
subsidiaries are located in special economic zones (Hainan Cares and Shenzhen Cares ) for which the
applicable tax rate is 15%, or designated as “New Technology Enterprise” (Chongging Cares) for which
the applicable tax rate is 15% or located in Western part of China {Xinjiang Cares) that enjoy a preferential
tax rate of 0%. In addition, these subsidiaries are entitled to certain reductions in tax rates in their initial

years of operations.
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10. TAXATION (continued)

The reconciliation between the Group's actual tax chargp and the amount which is calculated based
on the weighted average statutory tax rate is as follows:

! 2005 2004
RMB000 AMB'000
|
Profit before taxation : 594,757 499,598
Weighted average statutory tax rate ‘ 33% 33%
Tax calculated at the weighted average statutory tax réte 196,270 164,867
Non-taxable income ! (225) (225)
Non-deductible expense 1 4,194 7885
Effect of preferential tax rates : (149,176) (132,339)
Tax charge ‘ 51,063 40,188

No deferred income taxes had been provided at each of the balance sheet dates as no significant
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of aJssets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statement. |

The combined effect of the preferential tax rate applicable to the Company and certain subsidiaries is

as follows:
|
| BN
2005 2004 |
|
Aggregate amount (RMB'000) : 149,176 132,339
Per share effect (RMB) i 0.17 0.15
;
Business Taxes :
The Group is subject to business taxes on its service fevenues:
Aviation information technology service and data netwark 3%
Training, technical support service, rental and others 5%
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(Amounts expressed in Renmibi ( “RMB ") unless otherwise stated)

10.

11.

12.

TAXATION (continued)

Value-Added Tax (“VAT”)

The Group's sales of equipment are subject to Value Added Tax (VAT). The Company and one of its
subsidiaries, InfoSky are certified by the tax authorities as general tax payers, and other subsidiaries
of the Company are small-scale VAT tax payers. The applicable tax rate is 17% for general tax payers,
and 4%-6% for small-scale VAT tax payers.

For general tax payers, input VAT from purchase of equipment for sale can be netted off against output
VAT from sales.

VAT payable or receivable is the net difference between periodic output and deductible input VAT.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 have been computed
by dividing the profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company, of RMB529,647000, and
RMB449,181,000, by the weighted average number of 888,157500 and 888,157500 ordinary shares
issued and outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively.

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004.

DIVIDENDS

The shareholders in the Annual General Meeting on May 10, 2005 approved the final dividend in respect
of 2004 of RMB0.200 per share amounting to a total of RMB177631,500. The amount was accounted
for in shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained earnings.

The Board proposed a final dividend of RMB0.230 per share for the year ended December 31, 2005,
amounting to approximately RMB204,276,225. The proposed dividend distribution is subject to
shareholders’ approval in their next general meeting and will be recorded in the Group's financial
statements for the year ending December 31, 2006. After the appropriation of the dividend, the reserve
available for distribution as at December 31, 2005 was approximately RMB423,646,000 (2004:
RMB299,882,000).

2005 2004 |
Dividend proposed after year end
Proposed final dividend (RMB'000) 204,276 177632
Dividend per share (RMB) 0.230 0.200
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

At December 31, 2005, property, plant and equipment domprised:

The Group:
- N Furniture, S
Computer fixtures and Assets
systems and Motor other under
Buildings software vehicles  equipment construction Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000 -
|
Cost ‘
As at January 1, 2004 49,005 1,126,719 124,465 19,638 5,916 1,225,742
Purchases 2,249 77,038 ‘ 5,053 7166 1,379 92,885
Transfer upon compietion 4,094 — — - (4,094) —
Disposals / write off — (25,853) (362) (651} (3,200) (30,066}
As at December 31, 2004 55,348 1,177904 T29,156 26,153 — 1,288,561
Purchases 3,148 413,123 . 5,993 5,377 181 427822
Disposals / write off — {66,422) {907) (1,680) - {69,009)
As at December 31, 2005 58,496 1,524,605 . 34,242 29,850 181 1,647374
Accumulated depreciation |
As at January 1, 2004 {3,810) (656,286) [(11,811) (8,481) — (680,388)
Charge for the year {3,028} {145,514) (2,817) {5,274} - {156,633)
Disposals / write off - 22,691 o3 575 — 23,578
|
As at December 31, 2004 (6,838) (779,109) :(14,3W6) {13,180} — (813,443)
Charge for the year {2,496) {158,481) ' (5,121} (5,773) - {(171,871)
Disposals / write off — 63,720 [ 879 1,666 — 66,265
|
As at December 31, 2005 {9,334} (873,870} {18,558) {17.287) — (919,049}
Net book value 1
As at December 31, 2004 48,510 398,795 14,840 12,973 — 475,118
As at December 31, 2005 49,162 650,735 . 15,684 12,563 181 728,325

TravelSky Technology Limited  Annual Report 2005

67




NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts expressed in Renmibi ( “RMB”) unless otherwise stated)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET (continued)

The Company:

| Computer Furniture,

systems fixtures and

: and Motor other Assets under ‘
Buildings software vehicles  equipment construction Total ‘

I RMB'000 RMB000 RMEB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 i

Cost

As at January 1, 2004 30,098 1,105,948 14,481 14,356 2,880 1,167,764
Purchases — 74,947 3,797 4,802 320 83,866
Disposals / write off - {16,170} {362) (274) {3,200) (20,008)
As at December 31, 2004 30,098 1,164,726 17916 18,884 — 1,231,624
Purchases 2,795 412,305 2,877 3,121 — 421,098
Disposals / write off — {64,310} (508} {777) - {65,595)
As at December 31, 2005 32893 1512721 20,285 21,228 — 1587127

Accumulated depreciation

As at January 1, 2004 {502} (641,638) (7476) {5,511} - (655,127)
Charge for the year {1,908) (143,507) (1,979) {3,690} — {161,084}
Disposals / write off - 15,306 312 244 — 15,862
As at December 31, 2004 (2,410} (769,839} {8,143) (8,957} — {790,349)
Charge for the year {1,308) (157231} (2,394) {4,344} - (165,275)
Disposals / write off — 62,512 493 746 — 63,751

As at December 31, 2005 (3,716) (864,558} {11,044) (12,655) - (891,873}

Net book value
As at December 31, 2004 27688 394,887 8,773 9,927 — 441,275

As at December 31, 2005 29177 648,163 9,241 8,673 - 695,254
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14.

15.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

The Group The Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Cost
As at January 1 41,084 : 28,788 37,038 24,882
Additions 7,184 t 12,296 7,184 12,156
As at December 37 48,268 j 41,084 44,222 37038
Accumulated amortisation ‘
As at January 1 {25,907) ' (17,695) (23,468) (16,066)
J
Amortisation for the year (9.129) . (8,212 (8,304) {7.402)
|
As at December 31 (35,036) (25,907) (31,772) (23,468)
|
Net book value i
As at December 31 13,232 J 15,177 12,450 13,570

|

The intangible assets of the Group and the Company represent computer software acquired.
|
|

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES i

The Group The Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
Restated .
RMB'000 AMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
| ‘
Investments, at cost: - ‘ ! — 35,951 34,685

A listing of the Group's subsidiaries is shown in Note 7‘
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(Amounts expressed in Renmibi (“RMB”) unless otherwise stated)

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The Group The Company

‘ 2005 2004 2005 2004 |
} Restated [
3 RMB’000 AMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 \
Beginning of the year 42,424 36,327 8,890 8,890
Share of profit 11,312 10,934 — —
Dividend received from
associated companies {2,882) (4,837) - —
Additional capital contribution 3,000 — 3,000 —
End of the year 53,854 42,424 11,890 8,890

A listing of the Group's associates is shown in Note 1.

17. OTHER LONG-TERM INVESTMENT

At December 31, the Company and the Group had the following held-to-maturity investment:

} Interest rate and maturity 2005 2004 |
RMB’000 RMB000 |
Treasury bonds 3% per annum with maturity in December 2008 100,000 100,000

18. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS

At December 31, other long-term assets of the Company and the Group mainly comprised long-term
rental deposits.

19. INVENTOCRIES

‘ The Group The Company

! 2005 2004 2005 ' 2004 |

] RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 "
Equipment for sale 2,792 3,951 352 221
Spare parts 8 1 - —
Other 590 146 — —
Total 3,390 4,098 352 221

No inventories have been pledged as security for borrowings.
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

The Group The Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 AMB'000
Accounts receivable 63,271 40,307 33,313 19,408
Provision for impairment
of receivables (1,755} (2,137) (9,368) (9,368)
Accounts receivable, net 61,516 38,170 23,945 10,041

The credit period is normally within six months after the services are rendered.

The carrying amounts of the Group's accounts receivable approximated its fair value as at December

31, 2005 because of the short maturities of these receivables.

As December 31, 2005 and 2004, the ageing analysis of the accounts receivable was as follows:
|

The Group

| The Company
: 2005 2004 2005 2004
: RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 |
;
Within 6 months 42,694 . 130,456 30,308 17,253
Over 6 months but within 1 year 5,033 ‘ 7,883 1,546 327
Over 1 year but within 2 years 14,280 w 846 334 707
Over 2 years but within 3 years 142 : 126 3 126
Over 3 years 1,122 | 996 1,122 996
|
Accounts receivable 63,271 : 40,307 33,313 19,409
Provision for impairment \
of receivables {(1,755) ‘ (2,137) {(9.368) (9,368)
Accounts receivable, net 61,516 I 38,170 23,945 10,041
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET (conrinued)

The movement of provision for impairment of receivables is as follows:

\ The Group The Company "

3\ 2005 2004 2005 2004 &

} RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB000 ‘
Balance at beginning of year 2,137 3,486 9,368 10,845
Wirite back (382) (1,299) - {1,477)
Less: Amount utilized — (50) - —
Balance at end of vyear 1,755 2,137 9,368 9,368

21. DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES, NET

The Group The Company

!

\

2005 2004 2005 2004 |

RMB'000 AMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 |
Within & months 267,399 107,036 261,559 102,028
Over 6 months but within 1 year 3,932 1,251 3,727 1,247
Over 1 year but within 2 years 5,152 3,638 5,148 1,170
Over 2 years but within 3 years 1,005 388 992 888
Over 3 years 888 — 888 —
Due form related parties 278,376 112,811 272,314 105,333

Provision for impairment

of receivables {5,385) — {5,385) —
Due form related parties, net 272,991 112,811 266,929 105,333

These balances are trade related; interest free, unsecured and generally repayable within six months.

During the vear, the Group recognized an impairment loss of approximately RMB5,385,000 (2004 Nil)
for the estimated losses resulting from the inability of its related parties to make the required payments.
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22,

23.

24.

DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

|

The Group The Company \

2005 2004 2005 2004

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 .

1
Within 6 months - | — 7,344 37723
Over 6 months but within 1 year — ! — 3,404 —
Over 1 year but within 2 years — | \ — 10,621 11,114
Over 2 years but within 3 years - ‘ — 10,662 6,932
Over 3 years —_ : -— 4,751 1,333
|

Total — : — 36,782 57102

These balances are tradei related; interest free and unsécured.

DUE FROM ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
These balances comprise mainly dividend receivables from associated companies of approximately
RMB832,000, and the remaining portion is trade re?at‘led; interest free, unsecured and generally
repayable within one year. ‘

|
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

\

\ The Group The Company

| 2005 2004 2005 2004 |

i RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 |

' ;

Advance payments 8,550 . 27059 6,994 26,048
Interest receivable 25,840 33,910 25,840 33,910
Prepaid expenses 8,986 113,359 8,761 13,148
Other current assets 4,696 . 8,651 291 3,149
Total 48,072 182,979 41,886 76,255

I
|
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25. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

The annual interest rate on short-term bank deposits range from 1.88% to 3.70% (2004: 0.80% to
2.70%) and these deposits have a maturity period ranging from 6 to 36 months (2004: 6 to 36 months).

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Group The Company

2005 2004 2005 2004 |
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 |
Cash
RMB 156 409 2 39
HKD denominated 31 53 — —
USD denominated 7 69 — —
GBP denominated 12 14 - —
EUR denominated 19 21 - —
225 566 2 39
Demand deposits
RMB 760,228 1,971,284 709,142 1,936,570
USD denominated 77,858 239,303 38,230 183,075
HKD denominated 18,062 25,269 9,272 14,041
JPY denominated 438 421 - —
856,586 2,236,277 756,644 2,133,686
Total cash and cash eguivalents 856,811 2,236,843 756,646 2,133,725
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\
27. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

The Group

The Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
RMB’000 ARMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 |
|
Accounts payable 116,612 92,430 100,538 82,408
Accrued departure

technology support fees 52,144 105,877 54,783 122,195

Accrued technical bonus
to employees 46,174 47443 46,174 45,562
Accrued technical support fees 19,725, 21,41 18,714 17,192
Accrued network usage fees 28,412 64,038 28,412 64,038
Other accruals 63,394 73,278 52,835 62,595
326,461 404,477 301,456 393,990

As December 31, 2005, approximately RMB111 ,4W9,00b of the above balances were denominated in

US dollars (2004: RMB104,625,000).

At 31 December 2005 and 2004, the aging analysis of accounts payable was as follows:

The Group

The Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB000
Within 6 months 60,549 24,623 54,219 16,691
Over 6 months but within 1 year 12,938 3,542 5,360 2,207
Over 1 year but within 2 years 2,978 ' 29,120 839 28,708
Qver 2 years but within 3 years 12,121 1,358 12,094 1,021
Over 3 years 28,026 33,787 28,026 33,787
Total accounts payable 116,612 ' 92,430 100,538 82,408
Accrued liabilities 209,849 312,047 200,918 311,682

;

326,461 © 404,477 301,456 393,990
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28. DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

The Group

The Company

| 2005 2004 2005 2004
} RMB'000 AMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Within 6 months - — - —
Over 6 months but within 1 year 71,842 6,580 71,842 6,092
Over 1 year but within 2 years 3,277 5,247 2,788 5,247
Over 2 years but within 3 years 5,247 1,119 5,247 1,18
Over 3 years 13,615 14,102 4,277 3,309
Total 93,981 27048 84,154 15,767

These balances comprised mainly dividend payables.

29. TAXES PAYABLE

The Group The Company ‘
| 2005 2004 2005 2004
‘ RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Enterprise income tax payable 17,159 12,794 13,876 11,466
Business tax payable 14,409 14,01 13,587 13,185
VAT payable 367 {239} 110 (20)
Other 3,763 3,672 3,234 3,200
Total 35,698 30,138 30,807 27,831
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PAID-IN CAPITAL

The Paid-In capital as at December 31, 2005 represented' 577,303,500 Domestic Shares that were issued
by the Company upon incorporaticn and 310,854,000 H Shares that were issued by the Company in
February, 2001. ‘

2005 2005 -
Number of shares Amount
‘000 RMB'000
Authorised: :
Domestic Shares of RMB1 each ‘ 577,304 577304
H Shares of RMB1 each ‘ 310,854 310,854
Total shares of RMB1 each 888,158 888,158
Issued and fully paid:
Domestic Shares of RMB1 each ‘ 577,304 577304
H Shares of RMB1 each 310,854 310,854
Total shares of RMB1 each ‘ 888,158 888,158
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31. RESERVES

Straﬁtutory Statutory Discretionary |

Surplus Public Surplus Currency ‘
Capital Reserve Welfare Reserve translation |
Surplus Fund Fund Fund  differences Total |

RMB'000 RMB'000 AMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 AMB'000

The Group
Balance as at

January 1, 2004 1,194,956 121,185 110,811 157865 — 1,684,817
Transfer from retained earnings — 44,681 44524 45518 — 134,723

Balance as at

December 31, 2004 1,194,956 165,866 155,335 203,383 — 1,719,540
Transfer from

retained earnings — 52,138 51,995 88,231 — 192,364
Translation — — — — {450} (4501

Balance as at
December 31, 2005 1,194,956 218,004 207330 291,614 {450} 1,911,454

Statutory Statutory Discretionary %

Surplus Public Surplus Currency
Capital Reserve Weifare Reserve  translation 5
Surplus Fund Fund Fund differences Total ‘

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 |

The Company

Balance as at
January 1, 2004 1,194,856 120,423 110,049 157865 — 1,583,293

Transfer from retained earnings — 44 115 44115 45,432 — 133,662

Balance as at
December 31, 2004 1,194,956 164,538 154,164 203,297 — 1,716,955

Transfer from retained eamings — 51,390 51,390 88,231 — 191,01

Balance as at
December 31, 2005 1,194,956 215,928 205,554 291,528 —_ 1,907,966
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32.

APPROPRIATIONS AND DISTRIBUTION OF PROFIT

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, earnings available for distribution by
the Company will be deemed to be the lower of the amounts determined in accordance with (a) the
applicable financial rules and regulations in the PRC ("PRC GAAP"), and (b) IFRS.

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, the distributable net profit after taxation and
minority interest is determined after allowance has been made for:

{i) making up cumulative prior years' losses, if any;

(i) appropriation 10 the statutory surplus reserve funds at 10% of the aftertax profit, as determined
to be the lower of the amounts in accordance With PRC GAAP and IFRS, until the cumulative
amounts reach 50% of the Company’s registereb capital. The statutory surplus reserve funds
may be converted into capital provided that it is approved by a resolution at a shareholders’
general meeting and its balance does not fall bélow 25% of the new registered capital; and

(iii) appropriation to the statutory public welfare fundsj at 5% to 10% (at the discretion of the Board)
of the aftertax profit, as determined to be the lower of the amounts in accordance with PRC
GAAP and IFRS, which can only be used for the collective welfare of the employees.

The shareholders in the Annual General Meeting on May 10, 2005 approved the appropriation of
RMB88,231,000 to the discretionary surplus reserve. The amount was accounted for in shareholder’s
equity as a distribution of retained earnings in the year ended December 31, 2005.

For the year ended December 31 2005, the Board of Di;rectors proposed appropriations of 10%, 10%
and 20% of the net profit as reflected in the Company’s financial statements prepared under IFRS (2004:
10%, 10% and 20% respectively of the net profit as r?flected in the Company's statutory financial
statements prepared under PRC GAAP), or RMB51,390,000, RMB51,390,000 and RMB102,779,000
(2004: RMB44,115,000, RMB44,115,000 and RI\/IEB88,23:1,000), 1o the statutory surplus reserve fund,
the statutory public welfare fund and the discretionary surplus reserve fund, respectively.
|

The proposed appropriation of approximately RMBWOZ‘,779,000 {20% of net profit after tax) to the
discretionary surplus reserve fund for the year ended Qecember 31, 2005 is subject to shareholders’
approval at the next general meeting. Because of the adoption of the revised |AS 10, “Events After
the Balance Sheet Date’ the appropriation to the discretionary surplus reserve fund that was proposed
after December 31, 2005 will be recorded in the Group's financial statements for year ending December
31, 20086.

After the appropriations mentioned above, the retained earnings available for distribution as at December
31, 2005 was approximately RNMB627922,000 (2004: RMB477514,000).

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company to the extent of approximately RMB513,896,000 (2004: RMB442,371,000) for the year ended
December 31, 2005. |

L
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NoT1ES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts expressed in Renmibi (“RMB” ) unless otherwise stated)

33. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2005 2004
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Profit before taxation 594,757 489,598
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 182,015 166,741
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,240 55186
Impairment of investment - 171
Interest income (53,013) (37.710)
Provision {write back) for impaiment of receivables 5,003 (1,299)
Share of results from associated companies (11,312) {10,934)
Operating profit before working capital changes 718,690 622,083
Decrease (increase) in current assets:
Accounts receivable {22,964) (18,5619)
Inventories 708 (1,463)
Prepayments and other current assets 26,837 {8,825)
Due from related parties/associated companies {165,960) (29,128)
Increase {(decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts pavable and accrued liabilities (102,459) 58,683
Deferred revenue (1,170) 1,092
Due to related parties (1,643) (641)
Taxes payable 1,195 (2,159)
Cash generated from operations 453,234 621,123
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ‘

Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to market risks arising from changés in interest and foreign exchange rates. The
Group does not use any derivative financial instruments to manage those risks.

Fair values

The Group's financial instruments mainly consist of cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits, accounts receivable, advance to suppliers, due from associated companies and related parties,
treasury bonds, other long-term assets, accounts payable and due to related parties.

. . | . .
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments except for treasury bonds approximated their
fair values as at December 31, 2005 because of the short maturities of these instruments.
The treasury bonds that are held to maturity are carried at amortized cost. At December 31, 2005, the
market value of the treasury bonds was approximately RMB101,720,000 (2004: RMB95,881,000).

.Credit risks

|
The extent of the Group's credit exposure is represem:ed by aggregated balance of cash and cash
equivalents, short-term bank deposits, accounts receivable, advance to suppliers, short term investment,
amounts due from associated companies and related parties and treasury bonds. The maximum credit

risk exposure in the event that other parties fail to pe;rform their obligations under these financial
instruments was approximately RMB3,291 million as at December 31, 2005 (2004: RMB3,202 million).

Counterparties to financial instruments primarily consist of State-owned banks in the PRC, and a large
|

number of airlines and travel agents. The Group does not expect any counterparties to fail to meet their

obligations. The Group has concentrations of credit riskJ with these entities.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risks related to its capital expenditure as a substantial portion
of its capital expenditure represents imported equipment that is purchased in U.S. dollars. Fluctuation
of the exchange rates of Renminbi against foreign cujrrencies could affect the Group's results of
operations.
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NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts expressed in Renmibi (“RMB”) unless otherwise stated)

35. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group conducts its business within one business segment - the business of providing aviation
information technology and related services in the PRC. The Group's chief decision maker for operation
is considered to be the Group's general manager. The information reviewed by the general manager
is identical to the information presented in the consolidated income statement. No segment income
statement has been prepared by the Group for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. The Group
also operates within one geographical segment because its revenues are primarily generated in the
PRC and its assets are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no geographical segment data is presented.

36. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

At December 31, the Group had the following capital commitments:

2005 2004
RMB’'000 AMB 000
Authorised and contracted for
— Computer System 22,844 36,883
Authorised but not contracted for
— Computer System 370,000 411,000
Totat 392,844 447883

The above capital commitments primarily relate to the acquisition and installation of the next
generation traveler service system.

At December 31, 2005, approximately RMB2,348,428 of the above balance were dominated in
US dollars {2004: RMB2,408,200).
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36. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)  Operating lease commitments

As at December 31, the Group had the followmg;comm{tments under operating leases:

2005 2004
RMB’000 RMB’000
Within one year 52,621 57192
Later than one year but not later than five years 43,597 87787
Later than five years ‘ - 7865
Total 96,218 152,844

(¢) Equipment maintenance fee commitments

As at December 31, 2005, the Group had total eéquipment maintenance fee commitments of
approximately RMB5.1 million (2004: RMB6.8 million).

TravelSky Technology Limited  Annual Report 2005

83




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts expressed in Renmibi ( “RMB ") unless otherwise stated)

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Entities are considered to be related if one has the ability 1o control the other, directly or indirectly,
or has the ability to exercise significant influence over the financial and operating decisions of the other.
Entities are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant
influence.

Management believes that meaningful information relative to related party disclosures has been
adequately disclosed.

8)) Related parties

The major related parties of the Company and the Group are as follows:

! Name Relationship with the Company !
China TravelSky Holding Company (“CTHC") Shareholder of the Company
China Southern Air Holding Company Shareholder of the Company
China Southern Airlines Company Limited Subsidiary of a shareholder of the Company
China Eastern Air Holding Company Shareholder of the Company
China Eastern Airlines Company Limited Subsidiary of a shareholder of the Company
CNA Holding Shareholder of the Company
Air China Limited Subsidiary of a shareholder of the Company
Xiamen Airlines Company Limited Shareholder of the Company
China Eastern Airlines {Wuhan) Company Limited Shareholder of the Company
Hainan Airlines Company Limited Shareholder of the Company
Shenzhen Airlines Company Limited Shareholder of the Company
Shanghai Airlines Company Limited Shareholder of the Company
Asia Technology Development Indirect wholly owned subsidiary of a shareholder

Center {“Asia Technology”} of the Company
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

#)] Related party transactions !

The following is a summary of significant recurring| transactions carried out with the Group's
related parties.

(i Revenue for aviation information technology: and data network services, the pricing of
which was based on either contractual arrangements or negotiated prices with these
related parties with reference to the pricing standards prescribed by Civil Aviation
Administration of China ("CAAC") where applicable.

Name 2005 2004 -

! RMB’000 RMB'000
China Southern Airlines Company Limited (a) 266,019 256,515
China Eastern Airlines Company Limited (5) 218,671 177772
Air China Limited ‘ 202,532 170,321
Hainan Airlines Company Limited ‘ 119,118 117287
Shanghai Airlines Company Limited 81,908 54,045
Shenzhen Airlines Company Limited ‘ 79,084 50,704

(a) Included the transaction amount of its subsidiary, Xiamen Airlines Company Limited.

{b) Included the transaction amount of its subsidiary, China Eastern Airlines (Wuhan)
Company Limited. :

In the Directors’ opinion, these transactions were carried out with related parties in the
ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms.

(i) Lease of properties from CTHC

For the year ended December 31, 2005, oberating lease rentals for lease of properties
from CTHC amounted to RMB 38,608,608 (2004: RMB 34,570,760). The pricing of
operating lease rentals for buildings is based on agreed rates with CTHC with reference
to market rates.

(i) Technical support services from Asia Technology Co.

For the year ended Decembper 31, 2005, technical support services from Asia Technology

amounted to RMB 15,900,000 (2004: RMB15,076,800). Asia Technology is an indirect 85
wholly owned subsidiary of CTHC. The oricing of technical service fee is based on

contractual arrangement with Asia Techno[ogy.
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NoTES To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Amounts expressed in Renmibi (“RMB" ) unless otherwise stated)

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(3) Balances with related parties

Balances with related parties mainly comprised;

S, e e e e

The Company

The Group
Name 2005 2004 2005 2004 |
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000 |
China Southern Airlines
Company Limited (a) 69,969 51,192 67,848 48,526
China Eastern Airlines
Company Limited (b) 58,757 1,708 58,393 —
Air China Limited 61,710 37,871 61,710 37,871
Hainan Airlines
Company Limited 42,280 — 42,238 —
Shenzhen Airlines
Company Limited 11,107 559 11,064 519
(a} Included the transaction balance of its subsidiary, Xiamen Airlines Company Limited.
(b) Included the transaction balance of its subsidiary, China Eastern Airlines (Wuhan) Company
Limited.

The balances with related parties were unsecured, non-interest bearing and generally repayable

within six months.

The balances with related parties primarily arose from the above related party transactions.
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37.

38.

39.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(4)  Amounts due from other major state-owned enterprises

|
The balances with major state-owned banks are as follows:

The Group

The Company
Name 2005 2004 2005 2004
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Bank balances 1,181,532 743,565 1,027,185 601,471

The Group is a state-owned enterprise. In accordance with the revised IAS 24, “Related Party
Disclosures’ state-owned enterprises and their subsidiaries, other than entities under the Group,
directly or indirectly controlled by the PRC government are also defined as related parties of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The majority of the business activities of the Company and its subsidiaries are conducted with state-
owned enterprises. For the purpose of the related party transactions disclosure in accordance with IAS
24, the Company and its subsidiaries have established procedures to determine, to the extent possible,
the identification of the ownership structure of its customers and suppliers as to whether they are state-
owned enterprises. However, many state-owned enterprises have a multi-layered corporate structure
and the ownership structures change over time as a result of transfers and privatization programs.
Nevertheless, management believes that all material related party balances and transactions have been
adequately disclosed.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors regard China TravelSky Holding Company established in the PRC as being the ultimate
holding company.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on April 7 2006.
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE MANAGEMENT

As atDecember3t |
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 AMB000 RMB'000
Restated Restated Restated Restated
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net 403,997 340,632 545,354 475,18 728,325
Intangible assets, net 14,238 9,098 11,093 15,117 13,232
Investments in associated companies 12,391 23,646 36,327 42,424 53,854
Qther long-term investment 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
QOther long-term assets 8,465 5,746 4,907 16,142 20,906
539,091 479,122 697675 648,861 916,317
Current assets
Inventories 2,767 2,018 2,635 4,098 3,390
Accounts receivable, net 14,837 4447 18,352 38,170 61,516
Due from associated companies 598 377 65 — 1,227
Due from related parties, net 168,536 135,371 83,619 112,81 272,91
Prepayments and other current assets 15,356 30,826 32,005 82,979 48,072
Short-term investments — 2,195 1,920 1,749 -
Short-term bank deposits 516,186 539,491 505,000 625,378 1,947277
Cash and cash equivalents 1,636,818 1,893,422 2,034,952 2,236,843 856,811
2,355,098 2,608,147 2,678,548 3,102,028 3,191,284
Total assets 2,894,189 3,087269 3,376,223 3,750,889 4,107,601
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Company
Share capital 888,158 888,158 888,158 888,158 888,158
Reserves 1,295,014 1,453,674 1,584,817 1,719,540 1,911,454
Retained earnings
- Proposed final dividend 163,421 170,526 90,592 177632 204,276
- Others 169,624 293,665 314,471 451,297 584,304
2,516,217 2,806,023 2,878,038 3,236,627 3,588,192
Minority interests 30,613 37600 40,305 49,456 61,296
Total equity 2,546,830 2,843,623 2,918,343 3,286,083 3,649,488
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 167,092 193,044 366,061 404,477 326,461
Due to related parties 38,447 22,906 64,922 27048 93,981
Dividends payable 124,051 14,342 — — -
Taxes payable 14,375 13,140 24,848 30,138 35,698
Deferred revenue 3,394 214 2,051 3,143 1,973
347359 243,646 457880 464,806 458,113
Total equity and liabilities 2,894,189 3,087269 3,376,223 3,750,889 4,107,601
Net current assets 2,007,739 2,364,501 2,220,668 2637222 2,733,171
Total assets less current liabilities 2,546,830 2,843,623 2,918,343 3,286,083 3,649,488
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CUNSULIDALED INCUOME JIALTEMANT
" SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMA’EFION PROVIDED BY THE MANAGEMENT

Year ended December 31

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
ARMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Restated Restated Restated Restated
Revenues
Aviation information technology senvices 663,426 767478 663,932 1,025,725 1,238,003
Data network and others 167,375 209,964 229,686 257125 258,781
Total revenues 830,801 977442 ‘ 893,618 1,282,850 1,496,784
Business taxes and other surcharges (29,652) {32,604} (32,005} (42,277) (49,764)
|
Net revenues 801,149 944,838 861,613 1,240,573 1,447020
Operating expenses |
Depreciation and amortisation (109,658) {137373)! {149,166) (166,741} (182,015)
Network usage (48,640) (49,823) (68,792) {70,671} {59,982)
Personnel {72,019) (99,595) ; (147783) (133,829) {157,748)
Operating lease rentals (35,278) (37,108} {42,870) (49,408) (61,878)
Technical support and maintenance fees {40,701} (45,735): (44,650) (40,456) (68,138)
Commission and promotion expenses (44,207) (75,397) (74,537) (155,702) {148,004)
Other operating expenses (84,216) {93,838) (119,492} {170,624) (225,392)
Total operating expenses (434,719) (638,870) {637.2590) (787429) (903,157)
Operating profit 366,430 405,968 224,323 453,144 543,863
Financial income, net 41,956 42,635 34,569 37558 38,441
Share of results of associated companies 7289 14,265 ‘ 11,445 10,934 11,312
Other income/{expenses), net (4,102) (2,998) 2,008 (2,038) 1,141
Profit before taxation 411,573 459,860 272,345 499,598 594,757
Taxation (3,189) (3,149) (23,092} {40,188} (51,063}
Profit after taxation 408,384 456,711 : 249,253 459,410 543,694
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 40780 453,227 242,541 449,181 529,647
Minority interests 433 3,484 6,712 10,229 14,047
408,384 456,711 249,253 459,410 543,694
Earnings per share for profit attributable to
the equity holders of the Company, ‘
Basic and diluted (RMB) 0.48 0.51 ‘ 0.27 0.51 0.60
Dividends 163,421 170,526, 90,592 177632 204,276

Note:  Certain prior year figures have been reclassified to better present the financial position of the Group.
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SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT %

DIRECTORS

Chairman

Zhu Yong, aged 42, is an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Zhu is a senior engineer. He graduated
from Huazhong Polytechnic University and received a master's degree in engineering from the Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics. Mr. Zhu has over 20 years of experience in China’s aviation
industry. From August 1983 to April 1991, Mr. Zhu was arjm engineer in CAAC. He was the Manager of
the Computer Department of the Accounting Centre of China Aviation in May 1991 and the Vice Chief
Engineer and the Manager of the Computer Department of the Accounting Center of China Aviation in
January 1994. He became the Deputy General Manager of the Accounting Center of China Aviation in
May 1996, and has been the General Manager of the: Accounting Center of China Aviation from June 2000
to August 2004. From April 2001 to August 2004, Mr. Zhu was the General Manager of the Company.
He has been a member of the first Board of the Company since May 2001 and has also been a Deputy
General Manager of China TravelSky Holding Company since October 2002. In December 2003, he was
re-elected as a director of the second Board. in March 2004, Mr. Zhu was appointed as a member of
the Strategic Committee. From August 2004, Mr. Zhu has served as the Chairman of the Company.

Executive Directors

Zhu Xiaoxing, aged 41, graduated from Jilin University majoring in computer software. Mr. Zhu has nearly
20 years of experience in management and technological $upport in China's aviation industry. Since the
establishment of the Company in October 2000, Mr. Zhu had been the General Manager of the Operation
Department, the Customer Service Department and the Technical Management Department of the
Company. In August 2004, the Board of the Company appointed Mr. Zhu Xiaoxing as the CEO of the
Company. He has served the Board of the Company since October 2004,

Ding Weiping, aged 54, is an Executive Director and the Company Secretary of the Company. He
graduated from Beijing Industry Technology University and has over 20 years of management experience
in China’s aviation industry. From December 1979 to May 1984, Mr. Ding was an employee of CAAC. From
May 1984 to October 1987 he was employed by CACI. From October 1987 to August 2000, he served
as the Deputy Head of the Information Technology Room and then as the Vice Chief Engineer of CACI.
Mr. Ding was also the head of the Planning Department of CAC! from July 1999 to August 2000. From
July 1999 to August 2000, Mr. Ding also served as the Officer-in-charge of the Restructuring Department
of CACI. From October 2000 to August 2004, Mr. Ding has served as the Deputy Chief Engineer of the
Company and General Manager of the Department of Planning Development of the Company. Mr. Ding
has served as a Director and the Company Secretary of the Company since October 2000. In December
2003, he was re-elected as a director of the second Board and the Company Secretary of the Company.
In March 2004, Mr. Ding was appointed as a member of;the Strategic Committee.
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Song Jinxiang, aged 57 is an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Song graduated from Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics and has over 20 years of management experience in China's
aviation industry. From December 1976 to September 1981, Mr. Song was a technician at CAAC. From
September 1981 to July 1999, he served as the Deputy Head and then as the Head of the Business
Department of CACI. Mr. Song was the Deputy Chief Economist of CACI from July 1999 to August 2000.
He was a member of the first Supervisory Committee of the Company from October 2000 to Decermber
2003. In December 2003, he was elected as & director of the second Board of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Wang Quanhua, aged 51, is one of the Vice Chairmen of the Board. Mr. Wang is a university graduate
and has about 30 years of management experience in China’s civil aviation industry. He joined China
Southern Airlines Co., Ltd. in June 1991. Since June 1998, he served as the General Manager of the
Strategic Planning Department, and then as the Assistant to the President and Vice President of Southern
Airlines (Group) Co.. He has been the Deputy General Manager of China Southern Air Holding Company
since October 2002 and a director of China Southern Airlines Company Limited since March 2003. In
December 2003, Mr. Wang was elected as a director and Vice Chairman of the second Board of the
Company. In March 2004, Mr. Wang was appointed as a member of the Strategic Committee and the
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee.

Cao Jianxiong, aged 486, is one of the Vice Chairmen of the Board. Mr. Cao is an Senior Economist. He
has a master’s degree in economics and has over 20 years of management experience in China’s civil
aviation industry. He was the General Manager of China Eastern Airlines Development Company and China
Eastern Airlines Futures Company from March 1992 to March 1996. From March 1926 to December 19986,
Mr. Cao was the Assistant to the General Manager of China Eastern Airlines and from December 1996
to December 1999, Mr. Cao served as the Deputy General Manager and Chief Financial Officer of China
Eastern Airlines Corporation. From December 1999 to October 2002, Mr. Cao served as a Vice President
of Eastern Airlines Group Corporation. He has been a director and the Vice Chairman of the first Board
of the Company since October 2000. Since October 2002, he has been the Vice President of China Eastern
Air Holding Company. In December 2003, Mr. Cao was re-elected as a director and the Vice Chairman
of the second Board of the Company. In March 2004, Mr. Cac was appointed as the chief member of
the Strategic Committee.
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Gong Guokui, aged 57 is one of the Vice Chairman of the Board. He graduated from Capital University
of Economics and Business. Mr. Gong currently is the Deputy General Manager of China National Aviation
Holding Company. Mr. Gong previously served in corporate management positions of CAAC, CAMIC and
Hebei Provincial Administration Bureau of CAAC, with over 30 years of management experience in the
PRC civil aviation industry. From September 2002 to September 2004, Mr. Gong served as the Vice
President of Air China. Since September 2004, Mr. Gong'has served as the Deputy General Manager
of China National Aviation Holding Company, the promoter1 and substantial shareholder of the Company.
Since November 2004, Mr. Gong has served as the Chairman of CNAH Construction and Development
Company Limited. Since August 23 2005, Mr. Gong served as a director of the Company. Since August
24 2005, he served as the Vice President of the Company and a member of the Strategic Committee.

Rong Gang, aged 43, is one of the Non-executive Directors. Mr. Rong is a senior engineer and obtained
a degree in MBA from Guanghua School of Management, Peking University. He has 20 years of experience
in China's aviation industry. From August 1983 to May 199;6, Mr. Rong was an employee of CACI. From
May 1996 to May 1999, he was employed by CAAC. From May 1999 to October 2002, Mr. Rong served
as the Vice President of CACI. He has been the Deputy General Manager of China TravelSky Holding
Company since October 2002. He was a director of the first Board of the Company. In December 2003,
Mr. Rong was re-elected as a director of the second Board of the Company. In March 2004, Mr. Rong
was appointed as a member of the Strategic Committee.:

Yang Yatie, aged 61, is one of the Non-executive Directors. He is a senior accountant and has nearly
40 years of experience in financial management in China’s civil aviation industry. From December 1971
to March 1980, he was an accountant in International Affairs department of CAAC Headquarter. From
March 1980 to March 1988, he served in International Settlement Room of Financial Department of CAAC.
From March 1988 to August 1992, he was the accountant of London office of CAAC. Since August 1992,
he has been an accountant, Deputy Chief Accountant and then the Chief Accountant of China Aviation
Accounting Centre. Since October 2002 to December 2004, he has also been the Chief Accountant of
China TravelSky Holding Company and he retired from China TravelSky Holding Company since March
2005. In December 2003, Mr. Yang was elected as a direétor of the second Board of the Company. In
March 2004, Mr. Yang was appointed as a member of thé Remuneration and Evaluation Committee.

Li Xiaoguang, aged 47, is one of the Non-executive Directors. He graduated from Tianjin Civil Aviation
College and obtained a master's degree in management from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics in 1999. Mr. Li has nearly 20 years of management and mechanic experience in China’s
aviation industry. From July 1982 to October 1990, Mr. Li was an engineer in the Technology Department
of the Civil Aviation Maintenance Factory of China Northern Airlines. From QOctober 1990 to July 2007,
he served as the Deputy Chief Engineer and then the Chief Engineer of China Northern Airlines. From
July 2001 to December 2004, he was the Vice president of China Northern Airlines. From January 2005
to present day, he was the Vice president of China Southern Airlines Company Limited Northern Branch.
He was a member of the first Board of the Company. In December 2003, Mr. Li was re-elected as a director

of the second Board of thei Company.
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Si Yupei, aged 53, is one of the Non-executive Directors. Mr. Si is a senior economist and has about
30 years of management experience in China’s civil aviation industry. From August 1987 to January 1989,
he served in the Labour Division of Xi'an management office of CAAC. From January 1989 to October
2002, he served as the Deputy Head and then the Head of Personnel Division, Head of Human Resource
Department, Deputy Chief Economist and Deputy Secretary of Party Committee in China Airline
Northwestern Company. From October 2002 to November 2005, he has been the Deputy Secretary of
Party Committee in China Eastern Xibei Airlines. He also serves as the Secretary of Party Committee
in the Ningbo office of China Eastern Airlines Company Limited since November 2005. In December 2003,
Mr. Si was elected as a director of the second Board of the Company.

Song Jian, aged 44, is one of the Non-executive Directors. Mr. Song is a postgraduate of Nanjing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics in management science and engineering. From January 1997
to February 2002, he was the Deputy Head of Computer Centre of Air China Corporation. Since February
2002, he has been the Deputy General Manager of the Information Technology Centre of Air China. From
September 2004 onwards, Mr. Scng serves as the Deputy General Manager of the Information Technology
Centre of Air China. In December 2003, Mr. Song was elected as a director of the second Board of the
Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Wu Jiapei, aged 74, is a leading economist in China. Between 1955 to 1986, Mr. Wu was a researcher
at the Economics Institute of the Chinese Academy of Sciences and subseguently became a senior fellow
and the Head of the Quantitative Economics and Technological Economics of the Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences. From 1987 to 1998, Mr. Wu was the Chief Economist, Deputy Head, and then Head of
the Experts Committee of China State Information Centre. Mr. Wu has been abroad as a visiting scholar
and visiting professor in the United States and Japan. Mr. Wu is now Honorary Chairman to the Experts
Committee of China State Information Center, Invited Vice President of the Chinese Information Industry
Association, Honorary President of the Business College and Commerce College of Huagiao University
and a part-time professor of some universities in China. Mr. Wu is a member of the Appraisal Task Force
for Applied Economics Disciplines of the Second, Third and Fourth State Council's Academic Degree
Committee and has published over 20 books on economics. He was a member of the first Board of the
Company. In December 2003, Mr. Wu was elected as a director of the Second Board of the Company
and was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee. In March 2004, Mr. Wu was appointed as a
Chief Member of the Audit Committee and member of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee.
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Chow Kwok Wah, James, aged 60, graduated from the:Faculty of Commerce in Regent Institute of
London, in 1966. Mr. Chow is the Chairman of the Consco Group principally engaged in domestic real
estate investment and production of raw materials for the high-tech industry in China. From 1978 to 1994,
Mr. Chow participated actively in the Hong Kong stock market and was a member and licensee of both
the Far East Exchange Ltd. and The Stock Exchange of Hohg Kong Limited. Mr. Chow has more than 20
years of investment experience in China and his investments include the Jing An Hilton Hotel and Nantong
Hotel in Shanghat in 1988, the Tianjin International Building in 1991, and the Tianjin Somerset Olympic
Tower. He was a member of the first Board of the Company. In December 2003, Mr. Chow was elected
as a director of the Second Board of the Company and was appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee. In March 2004, Mr. Chow was appointed as'the Chief Member of the Remuneration and
Evaluation Committee.

Yick Wing Fat, Simon, aged 47 holds a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration, major in Accounting
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yick hasf over 23 years of experience in audit, direct
investment, investment banking and corporate advisory services. He is the fellow members of both the
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in England énd the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yick is an independent non-executive director of Shanghai International Shanghai Growth
Investment Limited and Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-Technigue Company Limited, which are both
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Since August 23 2005, Mr. Yick served as an
independent non-executive director of the company and since August 24 2005, he served as a member
of the Audit Committee and Remuneration and Evaluation Committee of the Company.

SUPERVISORS

Li Xiaojun, aged 50, the Chairperson of Supervisory Comimittee, is a senior economist. She graduated
from People’s University of China and has over 20 years of management experience in China’s aviation
industry. From March 1983 to May 1988, Ms. Li worked in the Planning Department of the Beijing Bureau
of CAAC. From May 1988 to December 1997 she held the positions of Deputy Head and then Head of
the Planning Department of Air China. Ms. Li was the Head of Personnel and Education Division of CAAC
from December 1997 to August 2000. She has been & director and Deputy General Manager of the
Company since October 2000. She has alsc been the 'Deputy Secretary to the Communist Party
Committee in China TravelSky Holding Company since October 2002. She was a member of the first Board
of the Company. In December 2003, Ms. Li was elected as a supervisor and the Chairperson of the second
Supervisory Committee of the Company.

Du Hongying, aged 48, is a Supervisor. Ms. Du is a sehior accountant. She graduated from Xiamen
University and has nearly 20 years of accounting and finance experience in China's aviation industry. From
August 1982 to January 1985, Ms. Du was a teacher at the Tianjin Civil Aviation College of China. In January
1985, Ms. Du joined Xiamen Airlines Limited and since 1999 she has been working as the Deputy General
Manager of the Planning and Finance Department of Xiamen Airlines. She was a Supervisor and
Chairperson of the first Supervisory Committee of the Company. In December 2003, Ms. Du was elected
as a supervisor of the second Supervisory Committee of th;e Company. In April 2004, Ms. Du was elected
as a Deputy Chairperson of the Supervisory Committee.
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Zhang Yakun, aged 45, is a Supervisor. Mr. Zhang graduated from Xi‘an University of Communications
with a master’s degree and has nearly 20 years of professional experience in China's aviation industry.
From 1983 to 1999, he served in Yunnan management office of CAAC. From 1999 to 2001, he was the
former Deputy Head of Operation and Control Centre and then the General Manager of Information
Technology Department of Yunnan Airlines. From October 2002, he was the General Manager of the
Information Technology Department of China Eastern Yunnan Airlines. In December 2003, Mr. Zhang was
elected as a supervisor of the second Supervisory Committee of the Company.

Wang Yonggqiang, aged 36, is a Supervisor. Mr. Wang graduated from China Civil Aviation University, and
has over 10 years of management experience in China's aviation industry. From July 1992 to June 1995,
Mr. Wang served in Engineering Department of China XinHua Airlines. From June 1995 to March 2000,
Mr. Wang served in Hainan Airlines, as a Deputy Head and Head of the Computer Information Center
and a Deputy Officer. From March 1997 to August 1997 Mr. Wang attended training courses on high-level
management in the aviation industry in Germany. Mr. Wang has been the General Manager and Chairman
of HNA Systems Co., Ltd since March 2000. Since November 2002, he has been the Senior Assistant
to Executive President of HNA Group. He was a member of the first Supervisory Committee of the
Company. In December 2003, Mr. Wang was elected as a supervisor of the second Supervisory Committee
of the Company.

Chen Lihong, aged 43, is a Supervisor. Mr. Chen is a senior accountant. He has over 20 years of financial
managerﬁenf experience in China's aviation industry. From January 1981 to August 1990, Mr. Chen was
a technician of the Xinjiang Qitai Agriculture Machinery Repair and Manufacture Factory and then became
an auditor of the Audit Bureau of Qitai Xinjiang. He served as an Assistant Accountant of the Xinjiang
Central Enterprises Department at the Ministry of Finance from August 1990 to January 1993. Since
January 1993, Mr. Chen has been working and served as the Deputy Head and then as the Head of Finance
Department of Xinjiang Airlines. In 2004, he served as the Chief Accountant of Xinjiang Airlines. In April
2005, he promoted as the Deputy General manager of Xinjiang branch of China Southern Airlines Company
Limited. He was a member of the first Supervisory Committee of the Company. In December 2003, Mr.
Chen was elected as a supervisor of the second Supervisory Committee of the Company.

Tan Xiaoxu, aged 59, is a Supervisor and a senior officer of the Company. Mr. Tan is a senior engineer.
He graduated from Beijing Military Zone Foreign Language College and has over 20 years of technical
support experience in China’s aviation industry. From April 1973 to October 1975, Mr. Tan was a technician
at the Beijing Military Zone. From October 1975 to November 1980, he was a sales representative at
the Beijing Bureau of CAAC. From November 1980 to July 1999, he served as a technician and then as
the Manager of the Applied Technology Department of CACI. Mr. Tan was a senior officer of CACI from
July 1999 to August 2000. He has been working in Network and Operation Department and the Secretariat
of the Board of the Company since October 2000. He was a member of the first Supervisory Committee
of the Company. In December 2003, Mr. Tan was elected as a supervisor of the second Supervisory
Committee of the Company.

100

TravelSky Technology Limited  Annual Report 2005




Zhang Xin, aged 43, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Zhang has over 20 years of technical experience
in China’s aviation industry. From October 1981 to December 1988, Mr. Zhang was a graphic designer
at CAAC. From December 1988 to November 1994, Mr. Zhang was a technician at CACI. From November
1994 to August 2000, Mr. Zhang was a senior technician at CACI. He has been working in Operation
Department of the Company since October 2000. He was @ member of the first Supervisory Committee
of the Company. In December 2003, Mr. Zhang was. elected as a supervisor of the second Supervisory
Committee of the Company.

Rao Geping, aged 58, is an Independent Supervisor. He |s a professor and doctorate tutor of the law
school of Peking University, the Head of the Institute of Imerjnational Law of Peking University, the Deputy
Head of Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan Law Research Center in Peking University, Vice President of
Chinese Society of International Law and a member of the%Committee for the Basic Law of Hong Kong
S.A.R. the Standing Committee of NPC PR.C. He is also a p?rt—time professor in a number of universities
in China including Wuhan University, China Foreign Affairs Uiniversity and East China University of Politics
and Law. Mr. Rao specializes in areas such as laws of ‘Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan as well as
international law, etc. In December 2003, Mr. Rao was elected as a supervisor of the second Supervisory
Committee of the Company. |

COMPANY SECRETARY 1

Ding Weiping, is also an Executive Director of the Compény.
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5./ NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The board of directors of TravelSky Technology Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to announce that an
annual general meeting {("Annual General Meeting”) shall be held according to the resolutions passed at
a board meeting convened on April 7 2006 and notice is hereby given that an Annual General Meeting
of the Company will be held at 10:30 a.m. on Thursday, May 25, 2006 at Conference Room 1907 Floor
19, South Wing, Park C, Raycom InfoTech Park, No.2 Ke Xue Yuan South Road, Haidian District, Beijing,
the People’s Republic of China for the following purposes:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

1 To consider and approve the report of the Directors for the year ended December 31, 2005.

2. To consider and approve the report of the Supervisory Committee for the year ended December
31, 2005.

3. To review the auditors’ report for the year ended December 31, 2005 and to consider and approve

the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2005.

4. To consider and approve the allocation of profit and distribution of final dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

5. To consider and approve the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers and PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian CPAs Ltd. Co. as the international and PRC auditors of the Company, respectively, for
the year ending December 31, 2006, and to authorise the Directors to fix the remuneration thereof.
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SPECIAL RESOLUTION

|
6. To consider and approve the expansion of the scope pf business of the Company, and amendment
to Article 13 of the Articles of Association of the Company in relation to the description of the
scope of business of the Company by subst-’itutingithe existing as follows:

“contracting the construction projects of computer hardware and software; research and
development, production, sales, leasing of computér hardware and software, peripheral facilities
and network products and the related information consultancy and technical services of the
aforesaid businesses; commercial information and travel information consultancy; export of self-
produced products and technologies of the Group;import of raw and supplementary materials,
machinery facilities, equipment and instrument, spare parts and technologies for the Group's

production and research, except for the impoft and éxport of commodities and technologies to be

exclusively operated by certain companies_or prahibited by the State: operation of internet

information services business, excluding specialised projects to be approved by the State in the

areas of news, publishing, medical and health, meaicines and medical appliances and BBS”

i
The aforesaid amendment to the Articles of Associaition of the Company in relation to the change
of scope of business is subject to the approval of Stajlte Administration for Industry and Commerce
and the amended Articles of Association of the Company will be effective upon registration with
State Administration for Industry and Commerce. |

I
Note: the underlined part is the proposed amendment to the existing business license of the Company.

7 To consider and approve other matters (if any).
By Order of the Board
Ding Weiping
Company Secretary
Aprit 10, 20086
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‘l‘é,-./ NoTICE oF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notes:

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, April 26, 2006 to Thursday, May
25, 2006 (both days inclusive), during which time no share transfers will be effected. Holders of the Company’s
H shares and domestic shares whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company at 4 p.m.
on Tuesday, April 25, 2006 are entitled to atiend the Annual General Meseting. Transfers of H shares must be
lodged with the share registrar of the Company’s H shares by 4 p.m. on Tuesday, April 25, 2006 in order to
entitle the transferee to attend the Annual General Meeting.

The address of the share registrar of the Company’s H shares is:
Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Rooms 1712-1716, 17/F

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Each shareholder who is entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint one or more
proxies to attend and vote on his or her behalf at the Annual General Meeting.

Shareholders or their proxies should produce proof of identity and other documents as required under the
Articles of Association of the Company when attending the Annual General Meeting. A proxy of a shareholder
who has appointed more than one proxy may only vote on a poll.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly
authorised in writing, or in the case of a legal person, must either be executed under its seal or under the
hand of a legal representative or other attorney duly authorized to sign the same. If that instrument is signed
by an attorney of the appointer, the power of attorney authorising that attorney to sign, or other document
of authorisation, must be notarially certified. To be valid, for holders of domestic shares, the notarially certified
power of attorney, or other document of authorisation, and the form of proxy must be delivered to the
registered address of the Company not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the
Annua!l General Meeting. In order to be valid, for holders of H shares, the above documents must be delivered
to Hong Kong Registrars Limited within the same period of time.

Shareholders who intend to attend the Annual General Meeting in person or by proxy should return the reply
slip for attending the Annual General Meeting to the registered address of the Company on or before Friday,
May 5, 2008 in person, by mail or by fax.

The Annual General Meeting is expected to last for half a day. Shareholders (or their proxies) attending the
Annual General Meeting are responsible for their own transportation and accommodation expenses.

The registered address of the Company is as follows:
TravelSky Technology Limited

Floor 18 - 20, South Wing, Park C

Raycom InfoTech Park

No. 2, Ke Xue Yuan South Road

Haidian District, Beijing 100080, PRC

Contact: Secretariat of the Board
Telephone: (8610) 8286 1610
Facsimile: {8610) 8286 1612
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